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Financial Highlights
B E

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEET  REEREAEIN

2011 2010
Revenue A 1,309.4 1,145.5
Profit for the year FE R 60.5 55.7
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAREE AEE R 57.1 69.9
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Dividend per share — Proposed final (HK cents) BRRE —EERBACEWL) 3.00 1.80
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the annual
results of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011 (the “Year”).

During the past year, business conditions remained highly challenging due
to a weak global economy, but more significantly, severe cost pressure
arising from rising labour cost and labour shortages compounded by the
appreciation of the Renminbi which drove production cost upwards. Our
veteran management team consequently formulated business strategies
and implemented highly stringent cost control measures to lessen the
impact of these pressure points, yet at the same time further invested in
research and development.

A new milestone was achieved in terms of revenue generated, reaching
approximately HK$1,309.4 million — a year-on-year increase of around
14.3%. Gross profit also increased by 6.6% to HK$269.3 million.
However, profit attributable to owners of the Company contracted by
18.4% to HK$57.1 million, mainly due to a surge in labour cost, along with
higher expenses related to marketing activities as we sought to expand
our distribution businesses overseas.

The Board recommended a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share for
the Year. Together with an interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents per share
already paid, total dividend per share will amount to 5.0 HK cents for the
financial year, representing a payout ratio of 36.1%.

A major highlight of the year was undoubtedly the strong performance
of the Distribution Businesses. Capitalising on an expanded distribution
network and new acquisition, notable progress was made. Standing out
in particular was the brand “TrekStor”. Since its acquisition in late 2009
we have within a relatively short period transformed the business into a
profit maker.

The acquisition of G.A.E.M.S., Inc. (“GAEMS”) in November 2011 is
set to be another success story. After gaining controlling interest in the
American electronic gaming accessories company, which was followed by
the launch of the first registered proprietary product for mobile gaming,
GAEMS began contributing income to the Group in the final two months
of the year. In addition to benefiting from an additional revenue stream,
we thus strengthened our distribution network in the United States.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

With regards to the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) business,
this segment was acutely affected by the escalation in labour cost. While
redoubling efforts at controlling this expense, we did not hesitate in
pursuing our goal of tapping niche markets to sustain growth. Capitalising
on our technical knowhow and flexible production capability, we were able
to earn the trust of world renowned consumer electronics brands, resulting
in the securing of more bulk orders and entry into niche markets. Having
dedicated research and development into more specialised products,
particularly healthcare electronics, we will look forward to launching them
on the market to spur further business growth.

Moving forward, the Distribution Businesses will remain our key focus.
We will continue to expand relevant distribution channels and add still
greater number of appealing products into the line-up. Specifically, we will
intensify efforts in developing our presence in China and India.

As the EMS business is the Group’s core revenue source, our main
objective will be to sustain turnover growth by securing more bulk orders
from top global clients. At the same time we will seek to generate greater
sales from niche markets, particularly healthcare electronics, where we
have seen solid demand for its baby care products. With labour and
production costs expected to remain high in the coming year, this is a
concern that will take top priority, and will involve the employment of even
stricter cost control measures backed by prudent management.

At this time, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the entire
workforce for their diligence and commitment during the year. | would
further like to express my appreciation to all of our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their unwavering support, which is the
cornerstone of our growth and prosperity.

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
Chairman

30 March, 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Overview

While the global economy remained unstable in 2011, the greatest
challenges that confronted manufacturers operating in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) was the ongoing increase in labour cost
resulting from minimum wage legislation imposed by the local government,
and further appreciation of the Renminbi which directly affected the cost

of production.

In spite of the various obstacles, the management’s strategic focus
on niche markets as highlighted by significant sales growth from the
Distribution Businesses, proved key in enabling the Group to generate
greater turnover, reaching HK$1,309.4 million in 2011, a year-on-year
increase of 14.3% (2010: HK$1,145.5 million). Gross profit increased by
6.6% to HK$269.3 million (2010: HK$252.6 million), which translated into
a gross profit margin of 20.6% (2010: 22.1%). Profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$57.1 million (2010: HK$69.9 million).

Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”) Business

Despite the challenging market environment, the EMS business recorded
a 5.1% increase in turnover to HK$802.7 million (2010: HK$764.0 million),
thus accounting for 61.3% of the Group’s total turnover (2010: 66.7%).

During the year under review, the Group remained keen on identifying and
developing products for potential niche markets, which proved successful
in generating new income streams. This included the further development
of healthcare electronics which is expected to contribute more to the
Group’s turnover in the near term.

Under severe cost pressure throughout the year, the Group implemented
greater cost controls, including increased automation of production lines
and bulk purchase of materials from suppliers. These ongoing measures
were crucial to moderating the impact of the cost rises on the Group’s
profitability.

Distribution Businesses

As a result of significant contributions from the Distribution Business in
multimedia products and computer accessories, the business segment
achieved a surge in turnover, rising by 32.8% to HK$506.7 million (2010:
HK$381.5 million), and accounting for 38.7% of the Group’s total turnover
(2010: 33.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R

(ii)

(iii)

8

Telecommunications Products

The business involves the marketing and distribution of branded
small and medium business phone systems (“SMB phone systems”).
The segment turnover maintained at HK$153.8 million during the
year under review (2010: HK$158.4 million).

Multimedia Products & Computer Accessories

This business segment refers to the assembling and/or marketing
and distribution of multimedia products and computer accessories.
During the year, the solid performance achieved by the Group’s
subsidiary in Germany TrekStor GmbH (“TrekStor”) highlighted
management’s prudence in tapping this particular niche market.
Sales growth was particularly evident in the second half year,
leading to segment turnover of HK$335.1 million (2010: HK$223.1
million) or a year-on-year rise of 50.2%. Considering the promising
eBook reader market in Germany, the Group launched and
distributed its first eBook reader in October 2010. Significant
sales of the product were recorded since launch, which became a
key contributor to the rise in segment turnover during the review
year.

Others

The business refers to the marketing and distribution of branded
mobile electronic gaming and entertainment systems and other
products. In view of the high potential of the gaming accessories
market, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in G.A.E.M.S.,
Inc. (“GAEMS?”), an electronic gaming accessories company in the
United States (“US”), in November 2011. In doing so, the Group
expanded both its brand and product portfolio. Following the
acquisition, the Group stepped up its marketing and distribution
efforts to promote the first registered proprietary product under
the “GAEMS” brand name, specifically, the G155, a portable
multi-platform console gaming product. Market response was
highly positive, allowing this newly acquired business to contribute
income to the Group by the end of the financial year.

Telefield International (Holdings) Limited * 2 EIFFZA A RA " Annual Report 3} 2011

(i)

(i)

EEM
ZEBERELREPPDEEFRRS([P
NEBEFERESDMER D o DIEEZE
TERF N H) & ¥ 5/5153,800,0008 7T (=
T—ZTF 1 158,400,000/87T) @ HEEFZ
EERT -

Z R o R E A
REBDRELEEERREMRGaER
R/ SRHERFMDH - FA - AEERER
Bt BB 2 T TrekStor GmbH ([ TrekStor |)
REFR RBEEERZBERFTISN
BRIREEEVSAN - LSRN TEF
LEEE SBESNEBNEEBIRF
#150.2%2335,100,0008 T( —ZE—=
£ 1 223,100,000%7T) - B RIEEMNE T
EMSARCE  AEER_T—ZTF+
AL RS EETEEETFE2MHER - %
EmBEHEHREERS) - KAREFA
DMEXENETERRE S -

Hith
REBEEELMEMB)E TR SR g
REEm  URHMEMMERR S -
EREEEMTISENER  AEERZ
E-—F+—AKREZRE FERR T
AAEIGAEMS, Inc. ([ GAEMS |)51%7#
W BILERGERERES o  WETK
&« NEBENNARE 1 KR8 AT GAEMS |
mERENEEEMENER —EERX
Z ¥ A IEEEMRGI55 - HRTIE & EE
RS2 B S TS A AN B B B R AR
BREBEERBAERL



P—————— -

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

Geographical Analysis &5
Revenue by Country
HEWA
HK$'000
TAT 249,733 242,007 242,103
250,000 P
199,432
200,000 — 190135
175,089
159,621
150,000 [—
121,112
104,829 2010

100,000 [— = 2011
50,000 [—

0 Germany Switzerland UK Italy PRC USA  Mexico Others Country

2 It FE BARH FE EH  ERT EAth X

With significant growth achieved by TrekStor, turnover from major
European countries (Germany, United Kingdom, Switzerland and Italy) rose
by 22.3% to HK$609.2 million (2010: HK$498.3 million), accounting for
46.5% of the Group’s total turnover. Revenue from the US increased by
27.1% to HK$227.9 million (2010: HK$179.3 million), representing 17.4%
of total turnover. Revenue from the PRC (mainly Hong Kong) amounted
to HK$242.1 million (2010: HK$242.0 million). As for other countries,
turnover rose by 1.9% to HK$230.2 million (2010: HK$225.9 million).

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded total revenue
of HK$1,309.4 million, an increase of 14.3% as compared to last year.
The Group managed to have a strong growth in revenue as a result of
the increase in EMS business and Distribution Businesses — multimedia
products and computer accessories segment.

AR TrekStor ¥ IF M B RBE - RKEEXTEN
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3 F 18 )N 22.3% £ 609,200,000 T ( —F — &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. Prior to the Year, the business of the
Group were segmented into two main groups, namely EMS and Branded
Businesses. With the growth in business scope, the management team
redefined segments to give a more appropriate picture of the business of
the Group. It is now considered there are two broad groups of business
units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution Businesses
whereas the latter can be subdivided into telecommunications products,
multimedia products and computer accessories and others.

The Group’s other operating segments include the marketing and
distribution of branded mobile electronic gaming and entertainment
systems and others.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the revenue from EMS increased
by 5.1% to HK$802.7 million (2010: HK$764.0 million), whereas the
revenue from Distribution Businesses segment increased by 32.8% to
HK$506.7 million (2010: HK$381.5 million).

Revenue by Segment (HK$’°000)
2EBA (F#&T)

17,806

335,088 \

163,766

802,730

Revenue by Segment (HK$’000)
2EEA (FH&T)
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REE - AVEFRUER M miE R - BEXRKR
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AREBEMEME LD T RIE LMD HmERE
BT BB MIRERLG - AREAM -
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B Distribution Businesses -
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m Distribution Businesses — Mutlimedia
Products & Computer Accessories
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»\‘ m Distribution Businesses - Others

D HER — Eit

Telecommunications Products

Distribution Businesses — Mutlimedia
Products & Computer Accessories

223,148 " EMS BT RERS
Distribution Businesses —
\ SHER - BAER
168,382 201 0

764,012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the growth in the
sale of non-telecommunications products in both EMS and Distribution
Businesses by 18.7% to HK$985.6 million (2010: HK$830.3 million), which
in turn contributes 75.3% (2010: 72.5%) of the overall revenue. It is the
ongoing policy of the Group to increase its emphasis to products with
higher profit margin.

Non-telecommunications products of the Group’s EMS segment
mainly include appliances and appliances control products; whilst
non-telecommunications products of the Group’s Distribution Businesses
segment mainly include multimedia products and computer accessories
under the brand “TrekStor” and the mobile electronic gaming and
entertainment systems under the brand “GAEMS”.

The growth in the revenue generated from non-telecommunications
products was mainly attributable to the following factors:

(i) The “TrekStor” brand launched its first eBook reader in Germany
since October 2010 and has significant sales in 2011. The revenue
generated from this segment of HK$335.1 million (2010: HK$223.1
million) representing an increase of 50.2% and the revenue also
accounted for approximately 25.6% (2010: 19.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011;

(i) the revenue of HK$17.8 million recorded in the sale of the mobile
electronic gaming and entertainment systems under GAEMS upon
acquisition of the subsidiary since November 2011; and

(iii) an increase in the sale of the Group’s EMS appliances and
appliances control products, revenue generated from which
increased from approximately HK$489.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2010 to approximately HK$513.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011, representing an increase of 4.9%.

Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold increased by 16.5% from HK$892.9 million in 2010 to
HK$1,040.1 million in 2011. The increase was mainly due to:

(i) an increase in the volume of raw materials and components
purchased by 13.9% to HK$859.2 million (2010: HK$754.4 million),
primarily attributable to an increase in the sales of Distribution
Businesses segment and EMS non-telecommunications products;
and

BEEFNWN DA
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—Z—Z4F : 830,300,0008 7T) © (REEEEUA
75.3%(ZZ—FTF 1 72.5%) - AU EARSF
ERNERNERARNEBRIFENR -

AEBNEFRERG O ANFENERTEER
RERMEFTHER  MAKEDHEERH DA
B IEEAE m B E 2 B IR Al TrekStor |1 &% ma h#
W% REEEm MEMEM - A K[ GAEMS [1E &
IR E TR S IREER AT -

FEAEMMELENBALR  TERHNAT
HE=EH

() [ TrekStor | N =2 —ZF + A EEE
HPEAETERESER IR =2F
—— FHEAEBNEE o o R RA
I A A335,100,000/8 L ( — T — T4 -
223,100,000/ 7T) * #&K50.2% * LA
MEBE—_ZT—F+_A=+—ALHF
EAREBEBERAL25.6%( T —ZT4F :
19.5%) :

(i) RZE——F+—AKBEBHEBRA
GAEMS AR + $HE B E T 78k M IR 44
RS I AN7,800,0008 7T ¢ M

(i) ARBEFRHERE THNERNERE
FIEREEEM  MEANKRARES
TE-TFE+ A=+ -BLEEY
489,300,000 7 * WIEHE T ——
F+ = =+—HI1EF%513,300,0007%
JC 0 #8K4.9% °

SHEKA
& B AR 1 — T — Z 4 892,900,000 7 7T 1 N
16.5%% —ZF ——4%1,040,100,000/8 7T ° &0+
SEAEN

(i) oA R ooT /) R BE 5B 12 N 18.9% &
859,200,000 & T ( = & — & :
754,400,000/ 70) © EZ MR D HETS
DEREFRERGIEENEMRNIHEL
RATE &

Annual Report %4k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F&EpzREREAT 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN W R

(ii) an increase in labour costs caused by labour shortage and (i) AREB N EREBETHBEMNRETE

compliance with minimum wage requirement in the PRC and the RIE - BEIRAG - M EERAREFH
associated production costs as a result of the appreciation of ESHBEERAN _EFATE -
Renminbi.

Gross Profit EX

Gross profit increased by 6.6% from HK$252.6 million to HK$269.3 E F| B 252,600,000 & 7T+ ¥ N 6.6% =

million, while the gross profit margin slightly reduced by 1.5% to 20.6% 269,300,000 # 7T - 1M FE A X B 1 £ 1.5% =

(2010: 22.1%). The gross profit was contributed by the EMS segment  20.6%(—Z—Z4 : 22.1%) - KA EFEER

of 55.0% (2010: 67.4%) and Distribution Businesses of 45.0% (2010: B E R ERN B55.0%(ZF—FF : 67.4%) ¢

32.6%). KEDHEEBHENRBON( ZZE—FTF :
32.6%) °

Gross Profit by Segment (HK$’000)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in gross profit was primarily attributable to the following
reasons.

(i) The Distribution Businesses segment of the Group remained
strong growth both in volume and gross profit in the year. The
volume increased by 32.8% and the gross profit of the segment
increased by 47.0% to HK$121.3 million (2010: HK$82.5 million)
with the improving result of the distribution of multimedia products
and computer accessories under the brand “TrekStor” and the
additional contribution resulting from the distribution of the mobile
gaming entertainment systems by the newly acquired business in
late 2011 under the brand “GAEMS” respectively.

(if) The continuing expansion into the Distribution Businesses gives
the increasing level of gross profit for the year 2011. An increasing
portion of the Group’s gross profit is now derived from Distribution
Businesses 45.0% (2010: 32.6%) during the year.

Other income

Other income decreased by 43.3% from HK$13.2 million in 2010 to
HK$7.5 million in 2011. One of the major items in the last year is the sum
of HK$7.3 million derived from the cancellation of customers’ orders which
no such item is found in current year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses accounted for approximately 6.4% in
2010 and 6.1% in 2011 of the Group’s revenue respectively. The Group
maintained similar level of selling and distribution expenses to Group’s
revenue as last year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses accounted for approximately 6.9% in 2010 and
7.0% in 2011 of the Group’s revenue respectively. There is no major
fluctuation in administrative expenses as a percentage of the Group’s
revenue in 2011.

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses decreased by 29.7% from HK$40.8 million in
2010 to HK$28.7 million in 2011. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the non-recurring one-off expenses of HK$12.1 million in relation to
Group’s IPO during the year 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interests incurred for the
Group’s bank loans, import/export loans, factoring and other interests.
The Group’s other interest expenses represent the recognition of
implicit interest on license fee payable. The Group’s finance costs
were approximately HK$4.4 million in 2010 and HK$8.4 million in 2011,
represented approximately 0.4% and 0.6% of its revenue, respectively.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expense mainly represents the Group’s current
profits tax provisions, at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC, the US, Japan and
Germany. The Group had no tax payable in other jurisdictions during the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011.

The Group’s effective income tax rates for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2011 were approximately 18.6% and 11.8%, respectively. The
decrease in the Group’s effective tax rates during the year 2011 was
primarily attributable to the utilization of tax losses of the Group’s overseas
subsidiary in Germany.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by approximately 18.4% from approximately HK$69.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to approximately HK$57.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The Group’s net profit margin attributable to
owners of the Company decreased from approximately 6.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to approximately 4.4% for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The decrease was mainly attributable to the significant increase in cost of
goods sold in the EMS segment due to an increase in labour costs caused
by labour shortage and compliance with minimum wage requirement in the
PRC and the associated production costs as a result of the appreciation
of Renminbi.

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling
interests

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounts to
HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: loss of
HK$14.2 million). The increase was primarily attributable to TrekStor and
GAEMS, the indirectly owned subsidiaries of the Company in Germany
and USA respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cash flows and the proceeds from the Company’s
initial public offering in January 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$147.8 million, representing an increase of HK$88.9 million from
2010. Respective sum of 40.4%, 27.7% and 19.8% of the cash and cash
equivalents was denominated in Renminbi, US dollars and HK dollars and
other 12.1% was denominated in various currencies.

The Group’s current ratio reflects a strong position at 1.62 times (2010:
1.30 times).

As at 31 December 2011, the total interest-bearing bank borrowings
were HK$51.9 million (2010: HK$62.6 million), comprised primarily of
bank loans and import/export loans. These borrowings are all repayable
within one year. The majority of these borrowings were denominated in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Euro and the interest rates applied
were primarily subject to floating rate terms.

The Group was in a net cash position (cash and cash equivalents less total
bank borrowings) of HK$95.9 million such that no gearing ratio applies.

Cash flow

In 2011, HK$38.3 million was generated from the operating activities,
whilst HK$93.9 million were received on financing activities and HK$44.9
million were spent on investing activities respectively. Net cash inflow
from financing activities was mainly related to the net proceeds from
initial public offer of HK$119.6 million offset by the net repayment in
bank borrowings of HK$10.3 million and the dividends paid of HK$15.6
million.

Exchange risk exposure

The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through foreign currency
forward contracts and put option (the put option enables the Group to sell
Euro at a designated strike price), in particular, the exchange rate between
Euro and US dollars. The Group categorises these instruments as being
entered into for purposes other than trading.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had currency option and forward
contacts with fair value of approximately HK$1.5 million. The contract
amounts of the option and forward contracts are EUR3,000,000 and
EUR2,500,000 respectively.

BEEFNWN DA

RBEEREFER
AEE—RUAHBELRSRERFAARN T
——F— ABRARBBRMFEFER L £
LEREARFHZNE -

RZF-——F+ZA=+—0 BREKREF
E¥) /147,800,000 7T * M=-T —ZF N
88,900,000/ 7T * & RIREZEEYWH40.4%
27.7% % 19.8% D BIAANREE LA KRBT
B BIM2A%AE ML BEMRFE -

AEENRBLE/162(E(ZF—FTF : 1.30
&) RERB) IRk o

RZE——F+=ZA=1+—8 ' ;T BRITEER
%8 /51,900,000 7t ( —ZF —Z 4 : 62,600,000
BIT) TERBITEREE HABER - tE
BEZFEN—FRNEE - WEBERKELH A
X B EBUTEHE - IRANNEREERY
ENERETE ©

AREBRENFESMI(RE MRS EBYRE
$R1TEE)95,900,000/8 ¢ B &R T iE
% o

HEeRe

RZZE——F « L& EB T3S A38,300,000
BT - BEEBATS IS £93,900,00078 7T & 1%
BIEEFTAIRE 544,900,000 T ° BEEEIR
SRANFHEEZHE XA ARBROTEHRBFE
119,600,000 T A7 - #WIRITEENEFFE
10,300,000 7t & 2 - % ££.15,600,0007% 7T A
8 o

SN L B
AEERHMER DA R R (REET]
BZRE R BT EHEBUT) » MR
NEEFRBHFE  LHEBITHLETHE
o AEEBZTABRREEUIE ML
IA-

R-ZZT——F+_A=Z+—H  AEBRINE
R RBAR 2 A FEL AE1,500,0008 7T °
ZEINEMERRBARANARASES B A
3,000,000 7t % 2,500,0008X 7T ©

Annual Report %4k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited Bk ZRERAT 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2011 amounted to HK$19.6 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2011 amounted to HK$19.9 million.
Both the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly related
to the acquisition of plant and machinery to cope with the increase in
business volume.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, none of the Group’s assets was
pledged.

Contingent liabilities

During 2011, a copyright collecting agency has unilaterally announced
new copyright fees for certain products of the Group. Management
estimates that the relevant alleged claim is approximately HK$7 million.
Based on the latest available information, the directors are of the opinion
that it is not probable that a Group will be required to settle the relevant
alleged claim.(2010: Nil).

Acquisitions, disposals and significant investment
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired the
51% equity interest of GAEMS, a company incorporated in the State of
Washington, USA, at a subscription price of US$2.0 million pursuant to a
share subscription agreement. The Group also provided a 3-year interest
bearing loan of US$3.0 million to GAEMS to enable GAEMS to repay its
loans, financial obligations and accounts payable due to third parties.
Apart from the aforesaid transaction, there was no material acquisition,
disposal or investment by the Group.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 2,800 employees in various
operating units located Hong Kong, USA, Germany, India and the PRC. In
order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure smooth operation
and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it offers competitive
remuneration packages, with reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications and experience.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
share option has been granted by the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the new financial period is expected to continue presenting
a fair mix of challenges and opportunities. Through the management’s
careful direction, the Group’s Distribution Business in multimedia products
and computer accessories that is starting to bear fruit and enriched
high-margin product portfolio, the management is cautiously optimistic
towards the Group’s performance in the coming year.

Having made significant strides in the past year, the Group’s distribution
business in multimedia products and computer accessories is expected
to continue performing solidly in 2012. Backed by its well-received eBook
reader and enhanced awareness of “TrekStor” brand, the management
is considering to launch advanced series of the eBook reader to fully
optimise returns. Meanwhile, it will also continue to extend the distribution
channels and enrich product offerings under this brand.

Furthermore, the Group secured a new license towards the end of the
financial year with a renowned phone and telecommunications giant to
distribute SMB phone systems in South America. In addition to bolstering
the Group’s product portfolios, the license will allow the Group to extend
distribution reach to yet another important market, thus strengthening its
appeal to potential clients.

Encouraged by the positive market response following the launch of
GAEMS'’s first electronic gaming product, the Group will now look forward
to reporting on the performance of this brand within a full 12-month
period. In 2012, the Group began the sales of G155 through the retail
stores and online portal of a major video game console manufacturer
in the US. Recently, it further extends the sales of the product through
the online portal of a leading major video game developer. Besides, it
will remain keen on identifying and developing other innovative gaming
accessories.

Fully aware of the importance of strong geographical coverage, as well as
the growing affluence of consumers in emerging markets, the Group has
established offices in Shanghai, PRC and Chennai, India with the objective
of expanding its presence in the two countries. The management will duly
build on this network in the coming year as part of efforts to strengthen
the Distribution Businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWN DA

To best combat production and labour costs, which most severely
affected the EMS business, the management will implement a strategy that
balances product expansion with prudent cost management. The Group
will continue its commitment to the research and development of new
products in order to reinforce its competitive edge in niche markets. More
innovative products will be rolled out, in particular, baby care products
— part of the healthcare product line — which will be further promoted in
response to positive reception from consumers and retailers during the
review year. By expanding sales volume and fully leveraging its extensive
distribution network, this will in turn lead to more cost effective running
of operations. Certainly, ongoing automation and cost control efforts will
be pursued given that materials prices and labour cost is anticipated to
remain high in 2012.

By bolstering the Company’s competitiveness over its EMS counterparts
on a variety of fronts, as well as having well-defined business strategies
in place, the management is optimistic about achieving growth in the
coming years.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalising best practice.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Throughout the period from 27
January 2011 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2011, the Company had
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the Code, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with
the title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code. Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, who acts
as the chairman and the executive Director of the Company, is also
responsible for overseeing the general operations of the Group. The Board
will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Group. The roles of the respective executive Directors and senior
management who are in charge of different functions complement the
role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board believes that
this structure is conducive to strong consistent leadership enabling the
Group to operate efficiently.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the different
roles of chairman and chief executive officer.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEAEE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions
by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions from the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management
are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 33 in this annual report. The
composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the Group and to
exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2)
of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group’s business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems
to manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative
functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings are
sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to
the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views at
meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment on the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent as at the date of this annual report.
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During the year under review, five Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:

REBFER  EARAR

EESEY  SEE
B AR AR

Number of meetings
attended/held

HEER
Name of director EEHS BEH CHeEHE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve B &R A 5/5
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry ERFEE 5/5
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen REREE 5/5
Ms. Fok Pui Yin EMB L+ 5/5
Mr. Lee Kai Bon FHaF Tt 5/5
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter Bz R B & E 5/5
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent AmAET 5/5
Dr. Xue Quan BREL 5/5

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 July 2010 (save for Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, whose service contract commenced from 18 May 2010) until
termination in accordance with the respective contract. Subject to the
terms of the service contract, each service contract may be terminated by
either party thereto giving to the other party not less than three months’
prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the date of signing of their respective letter of appointment and
may be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ prior
written notice.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall
retire from office at least once every three years and shall include those
who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting
immediately following their appointments.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation
of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the
above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010. The
Audit Committee had three members comprising our three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman),
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter and Dr. Xue Quan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements under
Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system of
the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the Board on 30
March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the Revised Code, a copy of
which is posted to the Company’s website and HKEx website.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2011 included the
following:

° to review the financial results and reports;

° to review the reports from external auditors, management letters
and management response;

° to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control system;
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TREAME

° to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

° to review corporate governance matters; and
° to review the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during 2011 and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below:

EHAEEETAEREERENER

. EHEREREE &

EHINRBEINEREEE -

o

BRZEER T —FOERMAEE  SKE
B E R E R E ST

A

Number of meetings
attended/held

HESR
Name of member REHSE BEH BHeEHE
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent BmAELT 4/4
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter Bz R Bk E 4/4
Dr. Xue Quan ERET 4/4

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010
and currently comprises one executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han
Ngok Steve, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue
Quan. Pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 30 March 2012,
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter has been appointed as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on the
Company’s website and HKEx websites.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management and to
make recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director
shall participate in any discussion about his or her own remuneration.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee was held during the
year ended 31 December 2011 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

HEER
Name of member BREESR BE CHEeEHE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter B SR B EE 3/3
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve B A 3/3
Dr. Xue Quan R RIEL 3/3
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent AmAELT 3/3
Nomination Committee REEES
The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December ARFIRZE—ZEFTA=T—BRIREE
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the Be  WEMRIM A TR ST BIES Ay B AE &R
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination cREZECTERERRERESZARES
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on BEtamEEeRIES: - REZEeAE
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. Its EHREGEEEN = T—_¢ A=+ HREL

specific written terms of reference, which has been revised by the Board
on 30 March 2012 pursuant to the Revised Code, are currently available
on the Company’s website and HKEx websites.

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, comprising one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong
Yan Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue Quan. Pursuant to
a resolution of the Board passed on 30 March 2012, Dr. Xue Quan has
been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Three Nomination Committee meetings were held and the individual
attendance of each member is set out below.

REZEGEAR-REGH  SKENERHFE

Number of meetings
attended/held

HEESR
Name of member BREHE HE CHeEHE
Dr. Xue Quan EREL 3/3
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve B A 3/3
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter Bz R Bk E 3/3
Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent AmAELT 3/3

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the report of the independent
auditor’s report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler as its external auditors for
the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services provided
by the external auditors is included in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements in the Annual Report. Apart from the provisions of annual
audit services, the external auditors were also reporting accountants of
the Company in relation to the listing. For the Year, the total fee paid in
respect of the non-audit services is approximately HK$0.3 million.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed to
meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. Qualified management of the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing
basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has appointed an
external independent internal control advisor to conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions, etc. Based on the assessment made by
the internal control advisor, the Board considers that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the Audit Committee has found
no material deficiencies on the internal control systems.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.telefieldgroup.
com.hk as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its
shareholders and the public. The Company will continue to enhance
communications and relationships with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly
to the Company through the following e-mail: enquiry@telefieldgroup.
com.hk.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, aged 58, an executive Director and
chairman of the Company since its incorporation on 18 May 2010, is
the founder of the Group and a director of most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. He has over 30 years of
experience in consumer electronic products industry. Under Mr. Cheng’s
leadership, the Group has succeeded to diversify from the production
of telecommunications products to a wider EMS industry segment and
entered into the branded products distribution sector.

Mr. Cheng is a FEIARBUA A ERE/MNTAER B Z B (standing
committee member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the Baiyun District of Guangzhou). Mr. Cheng obtained
a Bachelor of Mathematics from the University of Waterloo in Canada in
October 1977 and a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1973. He and Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry are brothers-in-law.

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry, aged 52, an executive Director since 1 July
2010, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the
Company. He is currently a director of most of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a supervisor of Guangzhou Telefield
Limited (the “Guangzhou Telefield”), Guangzhou Telefield Medical Devices
Limited (the “Guangzhou Telefield Medical”) and Telefield Vision (Shanghai)
Limited (the “Telefield Vision (SH)”). Mr. Poon is responsible for developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic objectives and business plans. Mr.
Poon has over 25 years of experience in audit, accounting and finance.
He is currently a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Poon obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Manchester in the United
Kingdom in December 2002 and a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1983. Since October 2009 and up to February
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EENONEEEEEFE

2012, Mr. Poon has been an independent non-executive director of
Sunlink International Holdings Limited (“Sunlink”) (stock code: 2336), a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). His appointment was subsequent to a
winding-up petition against Sunlink which was filed on 1 December 2008
and the petition was subsequently discharged in February 2012. Mr. Poon
and Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve are brothers-in-law.

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen, aged 51, an executive Director since 1 July 2010, is
currently the general manager of manufacturing division of Telefield Limited
(the “Telefield (HK)”). Mr. KY Ng is also a director of Guangzhou Telefield,
Huizhou Telefield Limited (the “Huizhou Telefield”), Telefield Vision (SH),
Guangzhou Telefield Medical, Telefield Holdings Limited (formerly known
as “Orient Power Telecommunication Limited” and “Big Apple Enterprises
Limited” (the “Telefield (BVI)”)) and Telefield (HK). Mr. KY Ng has over 25
years of experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. KY Ng is a chartered engineer of the Engineering Council and is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and The Institution
of Electrical Engineers, the United Kingdom. He obtained a Master of
Science in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1989 and Associateship and Higher Diploma in Production and Industrial
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1983 and November 1982,
respectively.

Ms. Fok Pui Yin, aged 56, an executive Director since 1 July 2010, is
the general manager of administration division of Telefield (HK). Ms. Fok is
also a director of Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited (the “Aiko (S2)”), Modern
Channel Limited (the “Modern Channel”), Telefield Medical, Telefield
(BVI) and Telefield (H
procurement and information technology management of the Group.

K). She is responsible for general administration,
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Ms. Fok obtained a Bachelor of Business (Business Administration)
from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in September 2004,
a Professional Diploma in Enterprise Directorship awarded jointly by the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and Hong Kong Productivity Council
in August 2009, and a Diploma in Management Studies awarded jointly
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and Hong Kong Management Association in September
1992.

Mr. Lee Kai Bon, aged 52, an executive Director since 1 July 2010, is
a general manager of business division of Telefield (HK) and the Group’s
research and development centre. Mr. KB Lee is also a director of
Telefield (BVI), Telefield (HK), Guangzhou Telefield, Huizhou Telefield,
Aiko (SZ) and Telefield Vision (SH). Mr. KB Lee has over 25 years of
experience in consumer electronic products industry. From November
1989 to November 1992, he served as an associate consultant of Hong
Kong Productivity Council. Mr. KB Lee graduated with a Bachelor of
Science (Hons) from the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in
July 1982.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, aged 51, an independent non-
executive Director since 1 July 2010. Mr. Au-Yang is a director of
AsiaSoft Company Limited which is the holding company of a group with
businesses in different sectors of the software industry. Prior to joining
AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang spent more than 20 years in the
financial services sector in the Asia-Pacific region. Mr. Au-Yang joined
the HSBC group in 1985 and became a co-head of Investment Banking,
the Asia-Pacific region of the HSBC group in 2001. Between 1985 and
2003 when he was with the HSBC group, he worked on various equity
capital fund-raising exercises and mergers and acquisitions projects
in the Asia-Pacific region. Between 2003 and 2006, Mr. Au-Yang was
an executive director and the chief operating officer of the SFC. In late
2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in charge of the
corporate finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is also an independent
non-executive Director and the Chairman of GreaterChina Professional
Services Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Au-Yang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Studies from the University of Bradford in England in July
1982, and a Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science in August 1983.

30 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited # B2 AR AT Annual Report F 3 2011

BEXIR _TEMFNARGERAZ2FKETE
2L (IHER) B R_TTNF/\AREB
TEEZPENABLEENRERBKHAREND
XEFEXE R NANL_FNLARGE LR
TERREFBEIAB) NABEEEXEHS
e REMEIREUR

TWHEE 525 BT —EFLA—AHE
HERITESE - AR EEBEB IR AEE
LI - JRETelefield BYI) » RFEEE - &
MAPE - BMNFRE - BEERIORI) REZFH(LES)
WESE - THAEREFHEMITX REBIR2SF
B - A— N\ NF+—AE— W hZ=F+—
A ZEESEAEALEENRERNEIER
Mo ZEAER—NNZFLAEERREERK
2. ESEE LT (KE)EA -

BFHITES
BERBEE 51 BT —ZTFEH—H
REHEBEZIENITES - BS 5L &£ = AsiaSoft
Company Limited K £ % © Z AR BB EEHF
EXZEEHEBHLEEBERAF - MA
AsiaSoft Company Limited BT * BX 5 & & 7 28
RKESERFERB20FNLER - BIGLER
—NN\EBEFMAELESR  —TT-—FRAES
SETAREERTHEEE - B NLN\AFE
T -FARELEREN  BFESETAES
BRAEEES  RHURWEER BH=-TT=
FEZTTRF Bkt IREENRTE
EMBELE - —TTHFEKE - BGEEEAHR
TEE  FREFESHNLERED - REEELEN
EAEESERBERAF (—HRBATEIZE
RETHAB)MBIULIERITESREF - BS
EER—NNZFLAESREMUEREARE
REMIEELEN - YR —NAN\ZFEN\ ARG
MBBURK E SR &5t RV EIEB T2 -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENONEEEEEFE

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, aged 61, an independent non-executive
Director since 1 July 2010. Dr. Kwan is a professor of Business and
Management Division of United International College (jointly founded by 1t
FAT# A2 (Beijing Normal University) and Hong Kong Baptist University).
He is also the chief financial officer and new premises project manager of
Yew Chung Education Foundation in Hong Kong. From October 2002 to
June 2008, Dr. Kwan was a non-executive director of Finet Group Limited
(stock code: 8317), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange. Since June 2008, he has been an independent
non-executive director of Jiangling Motors Co., Limited, a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Dr. Kwan is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Human Resources Management, a fellow of the Institute
of Management Consultants, and a senior member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Marketing. Dr. Kwan obtained a Doctoral Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Sydney in Australia in May
2004, a Master’s Degree in Commerce from the University of Hitotsubashi
in Japan in March 1981, and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from
The University of Hong Kong in November 1973.

Dr. Xue Quan, aged 46, an independent non-executive Director since
15 July 2010. Dr. Xue obtained a Doctor of Philosophy from & F&H%
KE (The University of Electronic Science and Technology of China) in
September 1993 and a Bachelor of Engineering from X & & : T2 Z2f5%
(Chengdu Institute of Radio Engineering) in July 1988. Dr. Xue is currently
a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering and the Associate
Vice President of the City University of Hong Kong. He has over 12 years
experience in consumer electronic products industry. From January 2002
to February 2009, he was the managing director of Shenzhen Goldradio
Communication Ltd, a company engaged in microwave and antenna
components for satellite communications. From October 1998 to May
1999, Dr. Xue was a senior engineer of Dynax Electronics (HK) Limited, a
company engaged in DVD components and wireless communications.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Wing Nin, aged 50, is the general manager of Aiko. He joined
the Group since 2006. He is a director of Aiko, Aiko (SZ) Telefield
GAEMS Limited (the “Telefield GAEMS”), GAEMS Inc. (the “GAEMS”) and
GAEMS International Limited (the “GAEMS Intl”). Mr. Ng has held senior
management positions in sales, marketing, operations and manufacturing
for more than 20 years. Mr. Ng obtained a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management jointly awarded by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and the University of Warwick, a Bachelor of
Science from the University of Ulster and a Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University).

Mr. Lee Cheong Lim, aged 50, is a general manager of Telefield (HK).
Mr. Lee is responsible for the exploration of business opportunities in
relation to medical equipment. Mr. Lee is also a director of Guangzhou
Telefield Medical. Mr. Lee joined the Group in early 2010 as the general
manager of the Group’s marketing department. Mr. Lee has over 25 years
of experience in consumer electronic products industry. Mr. Lee obtained
a Higher Diploma in Electronic Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Mr. Tam Kam Fong, aged 51, is a senior manager of Telefield (HK).
Mr. Tam joined the Group as chief mechanical engineer in 1992. He
had served various managerial capacity in the Group such as manager
of the Group’s mechanical engineering department and project and
operations manager. Mr. Tam has over 20 years of experience in business
development and research and development in electronics industry. Mr.
Tam obtained a Master of Science in Engineering and a Bachelor of
Science in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong, and a Higher
Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Ms. Ko Mee Ling, aged 49, is a senior manager of Telefield (HK). She is
also a supervisor of Huizhou Telefield and Guangzhou Telefield Medical.
Ms. Ko joined the Group in 1993 and is responsible for the finance
and accounting of the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in
accounting, financial control and management. Ms. Ko is a fellow member
of Association of International Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Ko obtained
a Master of Business Administration from the Open University of Hong
Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wong Sik Hung, aged 52, is a senior manager of Telefield (HK).
He joined the Group in 1997 as a manager. He has over 25 years of
experience in electronics industry. Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in
Management Studies awarded jointly by Hong Kong Polytechnic and
Hong Kong Management Association and a Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University).

Mr. Sum Kwok Fai, aged 53, is a senior manager of Telefield (HK).
Mr. Sum joined the Group in 1997 as manager of plastic department.
He has over 30 years of experience in moulding. He acquired extensive
techniques in relation to the use of lathe milling machinery, EDM sparks
machinery and computer numerically controlled machinery from his past
work experience. Mr. Sum completed Form Two education at Chan Shu
Kui Memorial School.

Mr. Dwight T. Sakuma, aged 61, is the president of TFNA (US). He
joined the Group in January 2009 as the president of TFNA (US). Mr.
Sakuma is currently in charge of the North American business, which
includes managing sales, marketing, operations, product management
and business development of TFNA (US). Mr. Sakuma has held senior
management positions in sales, product management and business
development in the consumer electronics industry. Mr. Sakuma obtained
a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Washington in the US.

Mr. Shimon Szmigiel, aged 61, is the director and chief executive officer
of TrekStor (Germany). He joined the Group in October 2009 as the
director and chief executive officer of TrekStor (Germany). Mr. Szmigiel
has 30 years of experience in sales, product management and business
development in electronics industry. Mr. Szmigiel was educated in Israel
at a “Kibbutz” (a special closed-group-community) and graduated from a
high school in Mannheim, Germany.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry has been the company secretary of the Company
since 20 August 2010. His biographical details are set out in the sub-
section headed “Directors” in this section.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 49 to 53.

The Board has declared an interim dividend for the year of 2.0 HK cents
per ordinary share of the Company (2010: HK$82.44 per ordinary share
of Telefield Holdings Limited), totaling HK$8,234,000 which was paid on
29 September 2011.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents
per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register
of members of the Company on 4 June 2012. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, it is
expected that the final dividend will be paid on or around 18 June 2012.
The recommendation of the final dividend has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position.
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Report of the Directors

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 18 May 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 31
December 2010. During the year, on 27 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”)
the shares of the Company have been listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented a capitalisation issue of 299,990,000 shares
and an issue of 100,000,000 new shares during its initial public offering
(the “IPO”) in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
100,000,000 new shares were issued at HK$1.20 per share. In February
2011, the underwriters of the Company’s IPO partially exercised the
over-allotment option and the Company issued an additional 11,714,000
new shares at HK$1.20 per share. The gross proceeds of the IPO and
the partial exercise of the over-allotment option received by the Company
were approximately HK$120.0 million and HK$14.1 million, respectively,
and the net proceeds were approximately HK$105.5 million and HK$14.1
million, respectively. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from the
IPO are set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January 2011.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and the prospectus
of the Company dated 14 January 2011, is set out on page 143. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this
annual report.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements in this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
The shares of the Company were first listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange on 27 January 2011. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities after listing.

RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the profits attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$57.1 million. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share premium and
retained profits. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company in
paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$128.4 million, of which HK$12.4 million has been
proposed as a final dividend for the Year, calculated in accordance with
statutory provisions applicable in the Cayman Islands.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 40 to the financial statements in this annual report. Since each
of the percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio) for the aforesaid
related parties transactions respectively is less than 5% and the annual
consideration is less than HK$1,000,000, the transactions are exempted
from the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements applicable under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as it falls within the de minimus threshold under Rule 14A.33(3) of the
Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 62.4% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
amounted to 15.8%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 26.0% of the total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to 10.2%.

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry

Mr. Ng Kim Yuen

Ms. Fok Pui Yin

Mr. Lee Kai Bon

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter

Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

Dr. Xue Quan

In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry and Mr. Ng Kim Yuen
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a period of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan Peter, Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Dr. Xue
Quan, and as at the date of this annual report, the Company still considers
them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

Group are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from their respective date of appointment
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from their respective date of appointment, subject
to retirement by rotation and reelection at annual general meetings of
the Company pursuant to its articles of association, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2011, interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company which have been notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:
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The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
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Mr. Lee Kai Bon The Company Beneficial Interest 2,640,000 0.64%
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Mr. Ng Kim Yuen The Company Beneficial Interest 2,640,000 0.64%
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Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
HEBTRAE
8 DNF LB ERE i BREE BHABEDL
Mr. Poon Ka Lee Barry The Company Beneficial Interest 540,000 0.13%
ER ML ZN/NE] BEmEm
Ms. Fok Pui Yin The Company Beneficial Interest 1,950,000 0.47%
EME 2+ ZA/NE] BEmiEm
Note: sz -

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century Win Industrial
Limited and Century Win Industrial Limited respectively holds approximately 52.62% interest in
each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore,
Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned

by each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited. i

40 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited #r =B 2R A AT Annual Report F 3 2011

BEMEEHELEBEBRAFNIG3.68%H * A

BB #062.62% 5 - MEEENEEEBRER AR R
ZECARAREEERHANAERNPHR AR EEE



Report of the Directors

Interest discloseable under the SFO and substantial
shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons/entities will have an
interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any other
members of the Group:

(@) Interest in the Company

ESTHME

REESRPERGBEENERRTE
IR
M-ZE——%F+—-F=+—8 UTAL EE
AR SAERAAR 10 R B B IR IR 7B H R A E 15
EXVERE2 23D EB G AR A B #E 58 2 i wm sk
B RBEBEAFRIEKRAIFEI[6KTFENARA
AIEEMARSENERSA R - TEHEERE K
A SRR A A E ISR T EARR RSk E
A Efh AR SR BRK B R R A& R R 2 A B R A
EE10% 3 A EREE -

Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
NCIES HEBTRAE
Z8 HEEEER M BEREE BHRBEDL
Dragon Fortune International  The Company Beneficial Interest 243,942,000 59.25%
Limited PN/NC] Bt
LR AR A A
Telefield Charitable Fund The Company Beneficial Interest 30,646,000 7.44%
FEEEESBRAR PN BEnkEsn
Century Win Limited The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
HREXBRAF PiN/NC] corporation (Note 1)
REEEERES (i)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%
VI N/N corporation (Note 2)
RiEwERER (Hfit2)
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
BRETRER A PIN/NS corporation (Note 3)
RiEwERER (A23)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%

ZAN/NS)

corporation (Note 3)
EEEEEER (Hi73)
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ESTHE

Company/ Approximate
Name of percentage of
associated Number of issued share
Name corporation Nature of Interest Shares held capital
DNEEB S HEBTRAE
=L HBEE AR M BREE BHABEIL
Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte The Company Interest in controlled 243,942,000 59.25%
(“Mrs. Cheng”) ViN/NG]! corporation (Note 4)
BEMEZ L ([BAK]) RiEwERER (ML)
The Company Interest in controlled 30,646,000 7.44%

Notes:

ZN/N)

corporation (Note 4)

SR Bl E B

g

Century Win Limited holds approximately 52.62% interest in Dragon Fortune
International Limited. Therefore, Century Win Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Dragon
Fortune International Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Century Win Limited holds approximately 52.62% interest in Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Century Win Limited is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve holds approximately 53.68% interest in Century
Win Limited and Century Win Limited respectively holds approximately
52.62% interest in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited. Therefore, Mr. Cheng is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon
Fortune and Telefield Charitable Fund.

Mrs. Cheng holds approximately 46.32% interest in Century Win Limited
and Century Win Limited respectively holds approximately 52.62% interest
in each of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund
Limited. Therefore, Mrs. Cheng is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares which are beneficially owned by each of Dragon Fortune and Telefield
Charitable Fund Limited.
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Report of the Directors

ESTHME

(b) Interest in other members of the Group b) RAEEEMKERFERS
Approximate
Name of subsidiary of Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders the Company shares held equity interest
IR fE =
BRREE KARHMBLARER EREE BHAEDL
Tarez GmbH TrekStor Limited 33 33%
Tarez GmbH Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. 66 33%
Tavida GmbH TrekStor Limited 16 16%
Tavida GmbH Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. 32 16%
Mr. Kam Wa Telefield Lifestyle Limited 175,000 25%
Mr. Ho Yau Chau Able Trend Technology Limited 500 5%
Mr. Cheuk Kim Piu Able Trend Technology Limited 500 5%
Mr. Dean Mercier G.A.E.M.S., Inc. 3,500 26%
Mr. John Smith G.A.EM.S., Inc. 3,000 23%

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR EEREROIES ZEF

DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

AR BIRANE R REA R E A T EFRRE
EFEAZHBATROAIRBBARBRMDNE
MBS 2R - MK FINEITETMZFRE
Mo HARE  AREBRARSEEMAMBARNL
RIREME AR BRI LA AR BEEEAR
TR EAA A B RE S SR -
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ESTHE

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests
in any business, which competed with or might compete with the business
of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
31 December 2010 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to, inter alia,
any employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
or service providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share
in respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the date of grant of the option provided always that
for the purpose of calculating the subscription price, where the Company
has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the
issue price shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within
the period before the Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
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Report of the Directors

yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Since the adoption of the Scheme, no share option has been granted by
the Company.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011 neither China Merchants Securities (HK) Co.,
Limited (“CMS”) nor any of its directors, employees or associates had
any interests in the shares of the Company or any member of the Group,
or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the
shares of the Company or any member of the Group.

Pursuant to the compliance advisor agreement entered into with the
Company and CMS in 2011, CMS received and will receive fees for acting
as the Company’s compliance advisor for the period commencing on the
Listing Date and ending on the date which the Company complies with
Rule 13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of its financial result for the first
full financial year after the Listing Date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock Exchange, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save for
the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.

ESTHME
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ESTHE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no significant event occurring after the end of the reporting
period and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been
audited by the Company’s auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler (who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting).

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Cheng Han Ngok Steve
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RSM Nelson Wheeler
HIEE(H8) S5 S
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TELEFIELD INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Telefield
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2011,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement

and the consolidated income statement,

of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Z AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
melkamk

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=1t—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET THT
Revenue WA 7 1,309,390 1,145,542
Cost of goods sold SHEMK A (1,040,059) (892,929)
Gross profit EX 269,331 252,613
Other income Hbg A 9 7,501 13,243
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KR oA (79,524) (73,022)
Administrative expenses THER (91,562) (79,086)
Other operating expenses HagE g R (28,728) (40,858)
Profit from operations KA 77,018 72,890
Finance costs B R A 10 (8,391) (4,425)
Profit before tax BRB AR A 68,627 68,465
Income tax expense FriSHi A 11 (8,116) (12,754)
Profit for the year FERA 12 60,511 55,711
Attributable to: UT&FEG :
Owners of the Company RAREBA 57,051 69,921
Non-controlling interests IR 3,460 (14,210)
60,511 55,711
Earnings per share SREF 16
Basic (HK cents) EARCE) 14.15 23.31
Diluted (HK cents) a8l N/A N/A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HENER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FET THT
Profit for the year FEREFR 60,511 55,711
Other comprehensive income: Htt2mEWE
Exchange differences on translating B GINSETSHITE H = 28
foreign operations 2,827 2,735
Gains on property revaluation Y2 E i Es 17 5,980 2,496
Deferred tax arising from gains V)5 E (i W an 2 AR IR R T 1R
on property revaluation &3 (987) (868)
Other comprehensive income FEHM2ERE - HIRBIE
for the year, net of tax 7,820 4,363
Total comprehensive income for the year FEADHMKE 68,331 60,074
Attributable to: DT &I :
Owners of the Company KARER A 64,778 74,284
Non-controlling interests IR AE A 3,553 (14,210)
68,331 60,074
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &R

As at 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+_-HA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT—TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BosE FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets EE&E 17 75,803 63,324
Goodwill EES 18 12,157 =
Intangible assets EEE 19 72,662 39,715
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ESREE 21 - =
Deferred tax assets RETHIBE 33 5,841 7,690
166,463 110,729
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 209,565 151,862
Trade and bill receivables & HQ%%EETA&F W= 23 182,220 154,338
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE e R HEAm KGR 24 61,647 40,330
Derivative instruments mEI,E: 25 1,532 2,361
Amount due from a shareholder JE AR SR SR IE 26 200 -
Current tax assets BNEAFHIB & 2= 2,147 1,601
Bank and cash balances RIT IR S AR 27 147,756 58,913
605,067 409,405
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FEIS B SRR 28 144,477 115,313
Accruals and other payables TEIRE R R At N RIE 29 148,205 107,677
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABENSRARE
profit or loss 32 9,023 8,321
Derivative instruments PTETAR 25 - 154
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 51,880 62,613
Product warranty provision EmiR AR 31 15,906 13,355
Current tax liabilities BNEARRIE B (& 3,834 7,780
373,325 315,213
Net current assets REBEEFE 231,742 94,192
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERARBEE 398,205 204,921
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

As at 31 December 2011 RA-Z——F+_-HF=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE FExT F&TT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRATHEGFABENERAE
profit or loss 32 10,063 17,770
License fee payable FERTREFE 1T 3R 19(b) 18,721
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 33 21,446 14,880
50,230 32,650
NET ASSETS EERE 347,975 172,271
Capital and reserves EXRf#EiE
Share capital &7 34 4,117 =
Reserves (G 35 351,806 187,165
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ERRHEA AE(LER 355,923 187,165
Non-controlling interests Eealiig T (7,948) (14,894)
TOTAL EQUITY EnAE 347,975 172,271

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012

Cheng Han Ngok Steve

R AT R
Director

EZE
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Statement of Financial Position
B R AR R 3=

As at 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+_-HA=+—H

2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 THET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARMKRE 20 3,171 3,171
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHT B A BRI 20 120,491 7,898
Bank and cash balances R1T MR & ek 27 12,985 =
133,476 7,898
Current liabilities RENEE
Accruals and other payables TEiRE A & E AR FIE 29 937 -
Net current assets hEBEEFE 132,539 7,898
NET ASSETS EEFE 135,710 11,069
Capital and reserves EXKEE
Share capital R& N 34 4,117 _
Reserves G 35(b) 131,593 11,069
TOTAL EQUITY ERSAE 135,710 11,069

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012

EEeN T —F=A=1+HitE

Cheng Han Ngok Steve Poon Ka Lee Barry

R 17 5 ]
Director Director
o EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE T ——

FH—RA=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company B4 FA AR

Foreign
Share currency Property Non-
Share premium Merger translation ~revaluation  Contributed Statutory Retained Proposed controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
(note 34) (note 35c)f))  (note 35(c)fi)  (note 35(cfil)  (note 35(c)fi)  (note 35(c)()
S
Bx  RiEEE AEE EiRfE EftRf LIVt ERRfE Brha RRRE & FERER BRAE
(Hets4) (Ezssen) — (Wassem) — (Wtsqenn)  (Bessely)  (BEsaely)
HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
Tikn T T T Thn T Tir T T T Thn T
At 1 January 2010 - - 3 10486 2,763 18,298 355 111608 - 146,681 81 145,870
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 273 1628 - - 69,921 - 74,084 (14210 60,074
Transfers &% - - - - - 598 (598) - - - -
Contrioutons from FERRRILE

non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 127 i
2010 interim dividend paid

(note 15) - - - - - - - 33,800 - (33,800 - (33,800
2010 proposed final divicend

(note 15) - - - - - - - (1411 741 - - -
At 31 December 2010 - - 31 18221 4301 18,298 953 189,720 74 187,165 (14,894) 17221
At 1 January 2011 - - 31 13221 4,301 18,208 953 139,720 41 187,165 (14,894) 11221
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 2,734 4,993 - - 57,051 - 64,778 3,553 68,331
Issue of shares Bk (Hets40)%0)

(note 34(e) and (g)) 117 132,940 - - - - - - - 134,057 - 134,057
Capialisation issue BR(EG (Hizsy)

(note 34(f) 3,000 (3,000) - - - - - - - - - -
Share issue expenses RiEARR - (14432) - - - - - - - (14432) - (14432)
Transfers &g - - - - - - 318 (318) - - - -
Acquistion of a subsidiary WE-RHEAR - - - - - - - - - - 3212 3212
Contrioutons from HERRRLE

non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 181 181
2010 final dvidend paid BXA-E-SEAHRE - - - - - - - - (7.411) (1411) - (1411)
2011 interim dividend paid EXf-E-——4hERE

(note 15) 5) - - - - - - - (8,234 - (8,234 - (8,234
2011 proposed final

dividend (note 15) nf/?ir 15) - - - - - - - (12,352) 12,352 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZF——EfZA=1-R 417 115,508 31 15,055 9,384 18,208 121 175,867 12,352 355,923 (7,948) 347,975
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+_-A=+—HILtFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETHHEERE
Profit before tax FR R BT A 68,627 68,465
Adjustments for: PR
Allowance for receivables, net FEWRIE B (55 58 1,416 2,970
Allowance on inventories, net GFEREFE 8,556 218
Amortisation of intangible assets BB 8,394 7,423
Depreciation e 14,819 13,120
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial liabilities BATEFABENSRIBE
at fair value through profit or loss ZAFE(W) EE (1,109) 3,696
Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on PTHE T BERE IR A FE (), EiE
derivative instruments (1,199) 788
Realised gain on derivative instruments PTETABERINE (1,132) -
Finance costs BhE A AR 8,391 4,425
Impairment loss on intangible assets EREAERERE 2,746 123
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (235) (39)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERE - 222
Provision on product warranty EmrAEE 14,784 11,683
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESEBAILE R 124,058 113,094
Payment of contingent considerations (note 32) S SARAB (H7£32) (5,864) (4,637)
Increase in inventories FEE M (65,258) (39,274)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bill receivables FEUE SRR R R MR 35 (38 0) R > (24,755) 1,332
Increase in prepayments, deposits TENFIE ~ S KA M EYEE INFIE
and other receivables (21,244) (28,056)
Increase in amount due from a shareholder U — 2 AR R A SRIBE AN (200) -
Decrease in amount due from a related party id b NGB N - 15
Increase in trade payables e B B BR8N 27,791 8,197
Increase in accruals and other payables TEIR B A N E e (< SRR IS AN 36,242 10,003
Increase in amount due to a shareholder FEST AR R FRIEIE AN - 245
Decrease in product warranty provisions EmiR AR (11,897) (11,004)
Cash generated from operations KBRS IRE 58,873 49,915
Income tax paid B X TETSHL (14,856) (15,509)
Finance costs paid B TREKA (5,691) (4,425)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR S H 5 38,326 29,981
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ll‘/j_\/\Iﬁlﬁ/J“JE%

For the year ended 31 December 2011

FH—RA=t—HLFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&TT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHESRE
Payment of business combinations EBE IR (2,280) (6,270)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) W iE —FEIFT B R B (f72236) (26,277) -
Interest received BUHE 235 39
Purchase of derivative instruments HEEITATA (333) (2,995)
Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE (19,620) (16,226)
Net proceeds from exercising derivative instruments 77574 T AFT{SR0EF58 3,339 =
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets M EEEEEMSHRIE - 632
Net cash used in investing activities BEEBFTARS TR (44,936) (24,820)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EHHRERE
Bank loans raised BESRITER - 52,6563
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (11,004) (30,475)
Net import/export loans raised BESELNERFHE 717 11,944
Proceeds from issue of shares (note 34(e) and (g)) BITRAD 1S 5/ (H15£34(e) % (g)) 134,057 =
Share issue expenses paid BIIRMENRAX (14,432) -
Contributions from non-controlling shareholders FEERRAR R & 181 127
Dividends paid BEXfTRE (15,645) (52,300)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activites & & EBNFT1S(FTH)EE £ %58 93,874 (18,151)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R RARESEEYEM (R ) BHE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 87,264 (12,990)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERE B e 1,579 3,281
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNRERASEZEY

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 58,913 68,622
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAGRAELEEY

AT END OF YEAR 147,756 58,913
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERRLSZEBEY DT
Bank and cash balances (note 27) SRITRIBEE(M7E27) 147,756 58,913
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MY oE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#ZE—ZE——F+-A=+—BItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liabilities on
18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and principal place of business is Units 609-610, 6/F, Bio
Informatics Centre, No.2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 27 January
2011.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2011, Dragon Fortune International Limited (“Dragon Fortune”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the ultimate parent and
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve, is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”)
to rationalise structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the Group on 31
December 2010. Further details of the Group Reorganisation
are set out in the paragraph headed “Group reorganisation” in
Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 14 January
2011 (the “Prospectus”).

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with the principles and procedures of merger
accounting as set out in Accounting Guideline 5 (“AG 5”) “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), as
if the Group Reorganisation had occurred from the date when the
combining entities first came under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders.

Details of accounting policy of merger accounting for business
combinations under common control are set out in note 4(b).

—RER
RARR=ZZE—ZFAHAA+/\BIREAA
FEERESHESEMKIAEREBRA
A o HeHfHr =it AClifton House,75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands » = & % 2 i
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FE255% AE ) & S A 061E609-610F © AR
ARME =T ——F—AZt+tARESR
BHARXSMAERIE ([BRA]) FiR
ke

RRRRREZERAT - HRBRARE
BEBE NG IRRMEE20 ©
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REBERNRBZ BRI ER £ -
AEBETEESAE ((FEEA]) UE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E ey R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2011. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong
Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of leasehold land
and building, derivative instruments and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

58 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F BB EH R A = Annual Report 43§ 2011

3.

R RAEIERT B RBM B RS
A

RAFEE  AEEERABTEGHMAE
PR B REHRE YN —F——F—
A—BRZ BRI G FREERZAME
el RARERT B AN HREER ([&BR
BREEN]) - EEVHREENBEE
BUBMERER  BEGIEARRE -
RMZ TR RARMERT B AT B R E R
Y EEYAEERANFREIBEFEZE
AT - AEREMBHREZ2H KPR
EREBHREAES -

ANER [ R R A L AR AEL R R A SRR T
B BHRELED - REBEEFHILEHZE
] BB RS LA EEITHG
18 W R FETE s S R] B W5 S 28
ERSHHERERENVBHRRAELEE R

#

pg
&

o

A
I

BREHBE
MHERRRRBEBEHAASRGES
B KR - BEARBERAA KA
RS LA ERRBERTREE
RENEBIN BRI RS -

B 5 95 TR I £ PO E IR - 1
RIEATEARZREHHREE - T4
T AR TES ARG S REA B
BT -

RAETEBEMBREEN M BHRERT
ERETEERR LM THEEERN
FEREFTBUER 2 BT H HE - P %R
SR WIS BB P RABERZBR
KAttt 2 #ikg - NEATE MR 5K E

AP MAR 2 ERGFTBEREAT -



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities as if they had
been combined from the date when they first came under
the control of the controlling shareholders.

The consolidated income statements and statements of
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of
cash flows include the results and cash flows of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have
been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of
the combining entities as if the Group structure as at
31 December 2011 had been in existence at the end of
each reporting period. The net assets of the combining
entities are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling shareholders’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling shareholders’
interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net
profit or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve
consistency of the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in note 4(z) to the financial statements. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose
of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

B R R MY oE

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=1t—HIFE

4. EEGHECEK (H)

(c)

(d)

EH a0t (LREBIRERI)
EmEE (&)

BEYSFETAEIRRE ST
S 2 BEUS 7 R AL S B
FIHEITRER S, - EEAA
RBEOREREE - FBRERS
B2 it B AR S REM AR
Ml R A EEZ B
SENAR - BB AERERGS B
HAHER - BMERTTRE - R
BEARTE @ HEERHRERES
BRI M 8 2 14 B0 g 1 22 A P 2 R
SEEEBH -

S YNSIPE St G S gice s
ERBREEZHBARRNKEE
AZABAEERREZAFHE
FEpIEtE -

INE]E

() ee R 25| EH
AN LTS
H<EIBEE T
EBERNE 2K f&
E’J“%(Uﬁ BEE®D
B e MBHmERABT
3575” ® /%EZEZ’KZ\\HE}UE]
BERETIEE o

o
E3a

b7

ﬁ4 “*} m} 33
i )ﬂﬂ$} fie
ﬁ% e SF

Al

iy REEBUBHRRIX

Z N

LASNBHEIT 2 R Z TIA A

THRAFKARZE0 2
HAEXRBMEASNEE
B o DINEFTHEZEKE
EREEDRASHREH
RZEEBRE - [ I IHR
HBREH BRI A
1B

Annual Report %%k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited FEERZRERAT 63



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT HhR MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of

the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Fixed assets

Land and buildings comprise mainly warehouse and offices.
Land and buildings are carried at fair values, based on
periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. All other fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Revaluation increases of land and building are recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that the increases reverse
revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss. All other revaluation increases
are credited to the property revaluation reserve as other
comprehensive income. Revaluation decreases that offset
previous revaluation increases of the same asset remaining
in the property revaluation reserve are charged against
property revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued land and
buildings, the attributable revaluation increases remaining
in the property revaluation reserve are transferred directly
to retained profits.

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost or revalued amounts over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term or 25%
Plant, machinery,
10% — 25%
10% — 20%
20% — 33"/5%

moulds and tools
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R MY oE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#ZE—ZE——F+-A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets

Trademarks are measured initially at fair value upon business
combination and are assessed to have indefinite useful lives.
No amortisation is charged to profit or loss. Useful lives are
reviewed during each reporting period to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite
useful life assessment for the trademarks. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

License rights, customer relationship and patents are
measured initially at fair value upon business combination
or acquisition date and amortised on straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives less impairment losses. Useful
lives of license rights, customer relationship and patents
are as follows:

Over the lease period
5 — 6 years
4 years

License rights
Customer relationship
Patents

The useful lives of customer relationship were estimated
by the Company’s management team upon business
combination, based on their expected successful rate
in retaining the acquirees’ customers, and the prevailing
general practice in the industry in estimating the expected
useful life of customer relationship acquired in business
combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

(9)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated
to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s product
development activity is recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

recognised,

which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT—F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Investments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
reversed and recognised in profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out from note 4 (0) to 4 (s)
to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(®)

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in
profit or loss as they arise.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all eligible
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detail
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain management employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions. The issuance of fully vested equity instruments,
or rights to equity instruments, is presumed to relate to past
service, requiring the full amount of the grant-date fair value
to be expensed immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S E e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EZE&HEE ()

(x) Taxation (Continued) (x) FiE (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there BRSO A P] R HIBTTRER AN ER
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets HMIBEEHESHHREER &
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income EHBEFS AR —HREE B
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group Wz FriSs: - LA RAEEFEIRFE
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a HEEGEHNBRIBEEERER
net basis. R BREHIREERAEERE
8 o
(y) Related parties ly) EEAL

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the fEAT AEAEEGREEA

Group. B -
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family A HMEATAL BIZAL
is related to the Group if that person: AT ZHHEREER

BE
() has control or joint control over the Group; () 22 ) sk 2 [F 122 ) A
£H
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HAEBFBBHEKRY
25
(i) is a member of the key management (i)  RAATHARAT]
personnel of the Company or of a parent of BRARIZEEER
the Company. B8 °

(B)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if B) (WFFE TNHEMIEE - Bl
any of the following conditions applies: ZEREAEER (REE

B ARE

(i) The entity and the Company are members 0] ZEBERNNRER
of the same group (which means that each =l 3= /N
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is (Eﬂﬂt - e
related to the others). NG EY NG

UL A REE) o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture (il —HERAR—ER
of the other entity (or an associate or joint NG e
venture of a member of a group of which the X (2 —EBEAE
other entity is a member). .ﬁﬁTﬁ‘ZE\Z\ Gl

NGNSl
KB RTE]) e

@iy~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same (iif) WEERES AR —

third party. B ZEERE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(@)

Related parties (Continued)
(B) (Continued)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
derivative instruments, deferred tax assets, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

4,

HE-_Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statement when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Split of land and building elements

The Group determines that the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements.
Accordingly the entire lease of land and buildings is classified
as a finance lease and included under fixed assets.

Legal title of certain patents

During 2011, the Group acquired a new subsidiary as
set out in note 36 to the financial statements. As at 31
December 2011, certain patents of that newly acquired
subsidiary were still under registration process. Despite
the fact that the Group has not obtained the relevant legal
titles, the directors determine to recognise those patents
as intangible assets, on the grounds that they expect the
registration of legal titles in the future should have no major
difficulties and the Group is in substance controlling these
patents.

Db e R

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=1t—HIFE

4. EESEE (#)

(aa)

(ab)

BRERIRERE (&)

TR A BT B3 BAR a8 2 T -
WREAWEBBBEIEL AR
- A EARBARARAE
WEAT A 7 2 AT B AR R B
5 o BRFERASRAREMR
BRERTRES EREFERT
ZAREE NERBEANAR
- AR 2 A B AR
BIERSH -

HEPRSE
REBRAKERNRE AR MR
SRR ELLEBRRTERZE
EMNBEMRETEARARS
8 WM RAR AR o B
ABRFHZBEHRREANBEX
R SRR TR -

5. BARAEREEMET

(a)

V& IS 5T R AV R 2 )

FEREBETBORE - EFEEHT
SIS TS MR R R SR A AR
B2 6

DR+ EREF
R B T T RE A SE AR B N K
SATHEES o F it - +HpEiE
FREHERAREHSHRML
ANEEEEZA °

HTENEEEMBRE
RZZT—F AEEKRE—X
FBTE A R (0B 75 3R 2K M 736 FT
) e R=—_FBE——F+=_fF=+—
B & ENHEARNETE
MINERBELFE - #REEH
WARSEHENEEEE  EF
REF N EZFERABREE -
B HERSEEARRELZILEEE
FiE# BT8R EAME - A
EEEG FEFHERF o

Annual Report %%k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F 2 ERZRERAT 81



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Fair value of certain assets and liabilities involve
valuation technique

During the Group’s acquisitions of certain businesses in
2009 and acquisition of a subsidiary as set out in note
36 to the financial statements, valuation techniques were
applied to determine the fair values of the acquired assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. Furthermore, the fair
value of derivative instruments and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss as set out in note 25 and
note 32 to the financial statements respectively also involve
valuation techniques. When applying valuation techniques,
various subjective assumptions and generally accepted
methodologies were used to derive the fair values. Any
changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the
estimate of the fair value of the underlying assets and
liabilities.

Fixed assets and depreciation

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s fixed
assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of fixed assets of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of fixed assets

The Group assesses annually whether fixed assets have any
indication of impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of fixed assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates.

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group’s intangible assets. The useful
live of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite, based on the expected usage and technical
obsolescence from the changes in the market demands
or services output from the assets. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised over the expected useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period was approximately HK$12,157,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE——F+-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group determines whether the unlisted equity
investment is impaired at least on an annual basis and
based on the financial information available from the unlisted
equity investment. Details are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and/or the past collection history of each debtor. Impairment
arises where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectable. The identification
of bad and doubtful debt requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#E—ZE——F+-A=+—HBItFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Product warranty provision

Product warrant provision of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate. Movement
of the product warranty provision during the year is set out
in note 31 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Should the final assessment of
tax authorities were different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
part of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in United States dollar, Euro, Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollar.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEKEREE)
(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) IMEERP: (4B)
The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure at the TREFSHASEALIZRRAINET|
end of reporting period to foreign currency risk arising from BEEEREENBBREENREH
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in respective RAEENEZINERR - ZE25IE
foreign currency. For presentation purposes, the amounts /) - I R HA SR BN HARE = & LA
of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollar translated BILSIREE SRR

using the spot rates at the end of reporting period.

2011 2010
—EB——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABTT
Denominated in United States dollar BLERIE

Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 R R EWREE 119,042 126,109
Deposits and other receivables e R E M EWGRIA 59 =
Bank and cash balances R1TRIE SRR 28,239 25,877
Trade payables FERE S RN (43,390) (34,467)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E MR 5RIE (2,946) (392)
Bank borrowings RITEE (14,778) (7,363)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies W (R B R RIFRIEA 71,041 18,684
Total HEt 157,267 128,448

Denominated in Renminbi DAR¥SIE
Deposits and other receivables e RHMEREIE 248 =
Bank and cash balances RITRBSER 50,950 3
Trade payables ERE SRR (10,945) (10,306)
Accruals and other payables TAIR B A R B qth fE < K18 (1,769) (1,780)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies W (RSB R RIFRIA (15,709) (14,533)
Total HEt 22,775 (26,616)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+—-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEKEREE)
(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) IMEERP: (4B)

2011 2010

—e——% —T-T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT
Denominated in Euro NG

Bank and cash balances RTINS R 5,804 29

Trade payables JERTE Z R (613) (480)

Amounts due from/(to) group companies  EY(FERT) EE A F3kIA 36,305 37,201

Total st 41,496 36,750
Denominated in Hong Kong dollar BB TyE

Bank and cash balances 1T RIR B AR 11 7

Amounts due from/(to) group companies e (FEf) EE A RIFRIE 113,720 90,531

Total st 113,731 90,538
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEBREE(E)
(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) IMEERP: (4B)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change REATA AR ] FHAERT
in the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits that B AEEFEREXZRRAOEERR
would have been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which L ER NG EE) - AR
the Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting SEEFEm F & B FEW AR R a0
period had changed at those dates, assuming all other risk -
variables remained constant.
2011 2010
—B——F —T—ZF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in foreign
Foreign currency/ exchange exchange
functional currency S IhREE B rates HK$°000 rates HK$’000
ExHA, A EXRFA
(F%) TERT (F%) FAT
United States dollar/ ETLHET 1% 2,192 1% 1,567
Hong Kong dollar (1)% (2,192) (1)% (1,567)
Renminbi/ AR R BT 5% (3,248) 5% (8,853)
Hong Kong dollar (5)% 3,248 5)% 3,853
Euro/ BT 2T 10% 3,790 10% 3,385
Hong Kong dollar (10)% (3,790) (10)% (3,385)

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010, the Group has used derivative financial
instruments to mitigate its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. The use of financial derivatives has
been closely monitored by directors of the Company. The
Group would choose financial institutions with high credit
rating as counter party when using derivative financial
instruments. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The
carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other receivables and due
from a shareholder included in the statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances and derivative
financial instruments is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 37% of trade
receivables as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 49%).

In order to minimise credit risk, management have delegated
a team to be responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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6. MEBERERE(HE)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. B R EE ()
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBELRMK
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REERNBOR AT RERER R
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HORBEETE - URERASE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements i R AIR S REEAEM R R
in the short and longer term. REWMEBESHES -
The contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial AEBSREE CGERERNS) B
liabilities (with interest thereon) is as follows: BHRNEBE SO ¢
Less than Between Between
1 year and 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
on demand years years 5 years
1ELTR
Rz
ERE NTF1E2H N TF2E55 HiB5E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 31 December 2011 N-E——%F
+=A=+—H
Trade payables ERE SR 144,477 - - -
Accruals and other payables TEIZ & F % E fib JE <t
IR 128,484 - = -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 51,880 - = =
Financial liabilities at fair BAFEFABZR
value through profit or loss @@ EE 10,137 8,893 944 -
License fee payable ST E - - 25,676 18,988
At 31 December 2010 R-E—FF
+=—BR=+—8
Trade payables FEE SR 115,313 - - -
Accruals and other payables T&I2 % F & E fb JE (<
IR 100,027 = = =
Bank borrowings RITEE 62,613 = = =
Financial liabilities at fair BATFET ABEH
value through profit or loss & @ E&E 9,083 15,093 2,237 =
Derivative instruments TESBIA 154 - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#ZE—ZT——F+=-A=+—HBIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings included certain bank loans that were
expected by the Group management to be repayable twelve
months or more after the end of each reporting period. The
maturity analysis in respect of bank borrowings (with interest
thereon) provided by the Group management incorporating

MBEEREE(H)

(c) AREBEZRERGE)
RITIEE R E A BT ERA
REREHALET+ —FARNE
EBME TRITER - AEEER
BiEE Ll BB (R R TS
B (ERAMAL) H2HA ST

the above expectation is as follows: T
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5
1 year Years years
Bank borrowings RITEE 1EUT NAF1E2HE N F2E5F
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TAT FAET
At 31 December 2011 NR=—B——F+=-H=+— 49,682 2,527 -
At 31 December 2010 RIE—TF+_HA=+— 53,554 7,364 2,525

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits as follows:

(d) FIZ=Ep
AW T AT R P ITERRIBTE
BOFEER - ZEFRRIEER
SFEFES B - FIRRE TR
-

W-—E—F+=-A=+—H &
FTE H BB TE2NERT
REFREEEE FFH T FE1001EE
B ANEBEMFE R R BT

/WA

2011 2010

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates RMEEFH (THE) —E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

100 basis points 100E2h 496 (174)
(100) basis points (100) &2, (496) 174

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the
Group’s profit for the year and retained profits that would
have arisen assuming that there is an annualised impact
on interest income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on the same basis
throughout the year.

X BRE AT RR RS
PEEELFARARBES
T 2975 . B OF R ) 2 R 7 M
REE - BITEERAHT 2 A
A o

Annual Report %%k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited F&ERZRERAT 91



Notes to the Financial Statements
S E e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEKEREE)
(e) Categories of the Group’s financial instruments (e) AKER=-ZE——F+=A
at 31 December 2011 =t+t—HHEmMIAZEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENEMEE
profit or loss:
Held for trading RIEEE 1,532 2,361
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREYHIE (2R R
cash equivalents): ReEEY) :
Trade and bill receivables FEWE G RR R R B R IR 182,220 154,338
Deposits and other receivables e R H ALK FIB 34,826 28,019
Amount due from a shareholder JE U — 22 BR SR T8 200 =
Bank and cash balances IRITRIE R 147,756 58,913
366,534 243,631
Financial liabilities: EREME:
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEATFEGFABENSRAE
profit or loss:
Designated as such upon initial R ERIEEE
recognition 19,086 26,091
Held for trading HEEE = 154
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RN AT ENSRIAE
Trade payables JERT B 5 BRK 144,477 115,313
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A I Efh FE S 5RIE 128,484 100,027
Bank borrowings RITEE 51,880 62,613
License fee payable FERHFET & 18,721 =
362,648 304,198
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
Categories of the Group’s financial instruments
at 31 December 2011 (Continued)

(e)

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a

fair value hierarchy which has 3 levels:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

inputs other than quoted prices included within

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

Level 1:

identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:

(i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3:

inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December

2011:

At 31 December 2011

Db e R
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BB B ()

(e)

rEBR=-_ZE——%+=AH
=t+t—HWNERITAEZER
(#8)
AEBRAUT AT ESREED
BATENE  EhaEE -

FIE: HRBEEXABZERE
mSHRE CREAE) -

FIEMBR/RZMEN
S BEESBEERER
(BMEFR) skfE#E (B
EREE BRGHZ
BAER

FIE: AHREABEMHH
EmMSHcEELRE
MABH (BEABRE
A) e

AT EEHEBN -B——F+=
A=+—B2EERE -

\=P——E+=f=+—H

Fair value measurement using:

AFEFEFMANSER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Description EH F1E F2E F3E st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TExT FExT FExT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value ZAFEFABRA
through profit or loss: SRUEE -
Derivative instruments PTETH
(note 25) (K#fi#25) - 1,532 - 1,532
Liabilities &fE
Financial liabilities at fair BRATER ABEH
value through profit or loss: &R EE :
Contingent considerations HARE
(note 32) (H17232) - 19,086 - 19,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HItFE

B R EE ()

(e) AKER=-ZE——F+=A
=+—HHEmMITAEZEH
(%&)
R-F—FF+—H=4+—H

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
(e) Categories of the Group’s financial instruments
at 31 December 2011 (Continued)
At 31 December 2010

Fair value measurement using:

NEEFEFTRANER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Description 1HE o F2ME F3E st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHBIT T 7T FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value 122 (EE ABZH
through profit or loss: TREE
Derivative instruments PTETEA
(note 25) (K17225) = 2,361 = 2,361
Liabilities &
Financial liabilities at fair AT EGAEBREAN
value through profit or loss: &REE :
Contingent considerations HARE
(note 32) (K17#32) = 26,091 = 26,091
Derivative instruments PTEIA
(note 25) (H17225) = 154 = 154
()  Fair values () 2¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets NEBRGEESMEIRARETHS R
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated BEMSHBENEREEERSH
statement of financial position approximate their respective B AEERE -
fair values.
7. REVENUE 7 A
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Sales of goods HEEm 1,332,548 1,167,610
Others Hith 1,757 159
1,334,305 1,167,769
Net sales return arising from product warranty 2 iR A EE RS %5 (24,915) (22,227)
1,309,390 1,145,542
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+—-A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

EMS

Electronic Manufacturing
Services

Distribution Businesses:

Telecommunications -
products (“TCP”)

Marketing and distribution of
branded SMB phone systems

Multimedia products and - Assembling and/or marketing
computer accessories and distribution of branded
(“MPCA”) multimedia products and

computer accessories

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The Group’s other operating segments include the marketing and
distribution of branded mobile electronic gaming and entertainment
systems and others. None of these segments meets any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments. The
information of these other operating segments is included in the
‘Others’ column under Distribution Businesses.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include impairment loss on intangible
assets. Segment assets do not include amount due from a
shareholder and deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities do not
include bank borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if
the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

2 EER

ARE= RSB -
BFRERE - BIRERY
DR

BAER - EERSBRMT

IEBERR

SEBESR — MAER/REHSR
B PHRIES R

= mn M B RS

AEBRRED AR IEXETEL - 12
HEARERERS - E0BBULERE - R
B EBHR R TRABM K & $HR RS o

REFH ML %E“%M%&“ﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ
MBETERNMRERG  AREME
B e &t%%a‘ﬁ’fﬁ%ﬂii | EERE A] S 2D BPAY
EREERE - IFEMEEDEHNER
BMADHEFES T [ El] —H e

1 B S AT BUR BB TS R I T4 PR
AENER - DEMBEL TN BIEETLEER
BER - DHEEL TBREEKR—BRR
RARBELERAREE - DHAEL T8
RITERRERERERE -

AREEREAMEILD PEHE LEER
B BB E=THEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZEERGE)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit (a) BEBESIEBEFIEE
or loss, assets and liabilities: EERBENER :
Distribution Businesses
EMS TCP MPCA Others Total
SIRBER
EFRERE ERER REKEH# Hit @gt

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Year ended BE-E2——F
31 December 2011 +=A=+—H
LEE
Revenue from external REINREPHA
customers 802,730 153,766 335,088 17,806 1,309,390
Intersegment revenue DEERA 119,484 - - 5,877 125,361
Segment profit D EEF 65,886 2,741 7,599 1,331 77,557
Interest revenue FIEWA 232 1 2 - 235
Interest expense FEFAX 886 2,700 4,805 = 8,391
Depreciation and amortisation 47 & K #$ 14,335 6,877 815 1,186 23,213
Staff costs BIA 161,602 6,642 35,384 2,344 205,972
Income tax expense/(credit)  FiEHIFY /(%) 7,009 329 (165) 943 8,116
Additions to segment NEIEREEEEA
non-current assets 18,891 16,206 308 236 35,641
As at 31 December 2011 R_B——F
+t=B=+—-H
Segment assets NEEE 620,263 111,947 131,904 93,243 957,357
Segment liabilities NERE 232,434 90,807 132,373 80,299 535,913
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 H#ZE—ZT——F+-A=+—HBItFE

Information about reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued):

8. ZRERE)
(a) BEAREDEENNEE
EERBENENA) :

Distribution Businesses

DIET
EMS TCP MPCA Others Total
ZiEREm
FEUERTS SEmR REREH Hit st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET FHET
Year ended BE-Z-ZF
31 December 2010 +=A=t+-~H
LEE
Revenue from external REIRBEEHA
customers 764,012 158,382 223,148 - 1,145,542
Intersegment revenue DEERA 93,391 = = = 93,391
Segment profit/(loss) SEEF/(BE) 93,233 5,725 (28,017) = 70,941
Interest revenue FIEIA 38 1 = = 39
Interest expense MERFEL 1,233 = 3,192 = 4,425
Depreciation and amortisation #7% 5 # i 12,839 6,999 705 - 20,543
Staff costs E\Iﬁi$ 124,341 5,374 35,264 - 164,979
Income tax expense/(credit)  FrEREY /(H5) 10,875 2,088 (209) = 12,754
Additions to segment uﬁiFm@JﬁFiEm
non-current assets 15,949 22 255 - 16,226
As at 31 December 2010 R-B-BE
+t=A=+—-H
Segment assets DEEE 422,959 100,676 91,416 - 615,051
Segment liabilities NEEE 194,135 77,385 99,104 - 370,624
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HItFE

8.

(b)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZEERE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FMmEDIUWA ~ BRmAIHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EENSEBEWEER:
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue [/ON
Total revenue of reportable segments iR EUR A 4a%E 1,434,751 1,238,933
Elimination of intersegment revenue 73 B0 P U A FEK 3 (125,361) (93,391)
Consolidated revenue el A 1,309,390 1,145,542
2011 2010
—e—-% —T-%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Profit or loss AR AR
Total profit of reportable segments R 5 BB ) 4B KR 77,557 70,941
Elimination of intersegment profits 73 20 [ 714 8 (6,184) (2,353)
Unallocated amounts: RO EHE :

Impairment loss on intangible assets mEAEREER (2,746) (123)
Consolidated profit before tax 4R E BT ADR T 68,627 68,465
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Z——F+-_A=t—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZEERE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FMmEDIUWA ~ BRmAIHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EERBEBEHNYEER
(Continued): () :
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments WmEDHEELE 957,357 615,051
Elimination of intersegment receivables 7 % ] FE WS SR TR 4K 8 (185,070) (100,254)
Elimination of unrealised profits K& I8 S K I 88 (6,798) (2,353)
Unallocated amounts: RS -
Amount due from a shareholder FEU — Z & 3R B 200
Deferred tax assets BIETRIEE E 5,841 7,690
Consolidated total assets LEBERE 771,530 520,134
2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments WE DB A ERRE 535,913 370,624
Elimination of intersegment payables 73 5B R FE A5 BB K 8 (185,070) (100,254)
Elimination of unrealised profits AT i A1) K 8 (614) =
Unallocated amounts: ROBEEHE :
Bank borrowings RITEE 51,880 62,613
Deferred tax liabilities BEREIEEE 21,446 14,880
Consolidated total liabilities meBBEs 423,555 347,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEHER(E)
(c) Geographical information: (c) HMEER :
2011 2010
—E——F —=-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
Revenue N

Germany = 249,733 159,621

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) R ARSME ([FRE)

(including Hong Kong) (BERE) 242,103 242,007
The United States of America EH 227,939 179,329
Switzerland it 190,135 90,108
United Kingdom T 100,269 199,432
Italy BARA 69,084 49,104
Mexico == Pg &f 55,038 104,829
Others Hi 175,089 121,112
Consolidated total fRE iR 1,309,390 1,145,542

2011 2010
—E——F =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Germany 1= 16,628 17,660
PRC (including Hong Kong) PR (BEERB) 73,982 62,401
The United State of America E3E 69,841 22978
Others H A, 171 —
Consolidated total G 160,622 103,039

EE27HRERE - WARNUE PRI
on the locations of the customers. BhA%E o

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#E—ZT——F+=-A=+—HBIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEHER(E)
(d) Revenue from major customers: (d) REFEEZFHWA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account EAREBWMAI0%HIA FHEER
for over 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as PIWASTAT -
follows:
2011 2010
—B——fF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
EMS segment BT RIERBE DI
Customer a ZFa 174,960 149,625
Customer b ZFb 207,490 353,913
Customer ¢ ZFc 188,382 N/A
Distribution Businesses DEEK-SHEBERR
- MPCA segment o T e
Customer d ZAd 132,816 156,522
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftlgA
2011 2010
—E——fF —=—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Bank interest income HRITA WA 235 39
Income from cancellation of customers’ orders & F ] EHUEU A - 7,323
Unrealised fair value gain REROITET EAFERES
on derivative instruments 1,199 -
Realised gain on derivative instruments BIROTAE T MG 1,132 2,453
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BEATEFABENSRIBE
at fair value through profit or loss NEERE 1,109 -
Sales of scrap materials SHE R 777 61
Others HAtb 3,049 3,367
7,501 13,243
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE_—-T——

FH—RA=t—HLLFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERAX
2011 2010
—E2——F = —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT T
Wholly repayable within five years: BREFABHEE :
Bank overdraft interest RITIBEZH L 1 2
Bank loans interest RITEFHFIE 986 1,314
Interest on import/export loans # A ERFE 394 323
Interest on factoring loans HAREREHALE 4,310 2,786
Not wholly repayable within five years: BARAEERBEEE :
Other interest expenses HF SR 2,700 -
8,391 4,425
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FISBiMxX
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FA&TT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATH I — BB ETE
Provision for the year FEREE 6,935 9,491
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (512) (533)
6,423 8,958
Current tax — Overseas BPEARRIE — 4N
Provision for the year FERE 3,876 3,797
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETRE = 16
3,876 3,813
Deferred tax (note 33) RIERIA (A75233) (2,183) (7)
8,116 12,754
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+—-A=+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices
in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

riEFmMX (&)
IS lifm@ﬂiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁu 7
16.5% TF 1 16.5%) WFLEFHE

%mﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁo

Hthith 75 FERBER RO IBE A IR AE
ELEMERRERNHRE  BEEWIRTT
A REREGEE -

B8 B B BRI B A FITR A B B RIS B
BEMEZ MR

2011 2010
—E——5 —=-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before tax PR AT ) 68,627 68,465
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BB E16.6%(ZZE—ZF : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) STEEBNEE 11,323 11,297
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEARBIUWMANTEZE (4,027) (3,049)
Tax effect of expenses that are DA A RS2
not deductible 7,154 5,684
Tax effect of temporary differences TMERLRE=ENT BT E
not recognised (36) 440
Tax effect of offshore profits that are B E R B 1 TR IS S &
not taxable (5,362) (8,244)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBRERE (512) (517)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBAEREERTIEBENTEZE
not previously recognised (1,499) (473)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised R E) A FIIBEE E’]TR?I’&%; 480 5,813
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TR EAE 595 1,803
Income tax expense FriSfim X 8,116 12,754
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HItFE

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

12, FEBH
AEBFEEMNERNGR/(

A ATH

the following: THIEEFIAT
2011 2010
—E2——F —=—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
Amortisation of intangible assets (included EREEEHEGIAHEERDHRA)

in selling and distribution expenses) 8,394 7,423
Auditor’s remuneration ZEAN I 1,233 1,168
Allowance for receivables, net (note 23) e GRIB R FRE (HTa223) 1,416 2,970
Cost of goods sold (Note (i) HE B AR (HTEE()

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 1,031,503 892,711

Allowance for inventories FE R 18,432 10,842

Reversal of allowance for inventories T E BB REE (a2 3)

(Note (i) (9,876) (10,624)
1,040,059 892,929
Depreciation e 14,819 13,120
Directors’ emoluments =Tl o

As directors = 540 263
For management EE= 8,253 10,122
8,793 10,385

Research and development expenditure SRR X (A7 a2 (i)

(Note (i) 22,748 20,931
Exchange losses, net b 5 518558 3,693 4,887
Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on REROTETEAFEKZ), BB

derivative instruments (1,199) 788
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial liabilities BEATEFAERNERAEATE

at fair value through profit or loss (Uezk), /B8 (1,109) 3,696
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREEREEEGIAREMKEEER)

(included in other operating expenses) 2,746 123
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEEERE - 222
Operating lease charges KEHEE R

Land and buildings T RIEF 12,781 11,727
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BTN (BIEEEME)

Salaries, bonus and allowances e~ JEALRo2ER 196,153 157,208

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREAET B TR 9,819 7,771

205,972 164,979
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12.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, cost of goods sold includes
approximately HK$121,045,000 (2010: HK$90,278,000) relating to staff costs
and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses.

The Group makes allowance for inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount
of inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$20,202,000 (2010: HK$18,112,000)
relating to staff costs, amounts of which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of
expenses.

12.
pit -
0

(i

(i)

Db e ER

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=1t—HIFE

FEBEN ()

BE_Z——ft-_A=t—RLEE
HERABREABEINARFTEN
121,045,000 7T (= F —Z 4 : 90,278,000
BIT)  HERRIET A LXERRESLE
FXRVABEET

AEEHERAEBHABINRRENNTER
TEHBHE - BERCIEERANEERRE
MEFRESHE -

BE_Z——F+-_A=t+—BLFE " W
B B ¥ B B 8 TRk A8 4920,202,0005%
TT(ZZE—T4F : 18,112,00087T) * % 5%
BT A L ERBESEZSAX MBS
q:n °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

13. EERIEBRSHFATHNME

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=M<
The emoluments of each of the Company’s director were KA SEEMEMT :
as follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits contributions  Discretionary
Fees in kind scheme bonus Total
e 2ER BIREF
Name of director BEEng ik ENFlE G A MiERA -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT THBIL T THL
Year ended 31 HEZ-8-—-F
December 2011 TZAZ+-HLEE
Executive directors Hirg%
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve BSR4 - 2,683 114 180 2,977
Mr. Lee Kai Bon FEAEE - 1,206 51 100 1,357
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RELE - 1,379 59 100 1,538
Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry BRAEE - 1,040 12 120 1,172
Madam Fok Pui Yin EfBL - 1,064 45 100 1,209
- 1,372 281 600 8,253
Independent non-executive directors BV HEE/TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERELE 180 - - 180
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent BmpEE 180 - - 180
Mr. Xue Quan EREE 180 - - 180
Total et 540 1,372 281 600 8,793
Year ended 31 HE-B-%F
December 2010 TZR=T-HLFE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok, Steve R A - 2,417 103 1,120 3,640
Mr. Lee Kai Bon TEALE - 1,171 50 425 1,646
Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIWRLE - 1,344 58 490 1,892
Mr. Poon Ka Lee, Barry ERALE - 945 12 508 1,465
Madam Fok Pui Yin EMBELL - 1,011 43 425 1,479
- 6,888 266 2,968 10,122
Independent non-executive directors BV HEE/TEE
Mr. Au-yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERELE 90 - - 90
Mr. Kwan Pun Fong, Vincent BmpEE 90 - - 90
Mr. Xue Quan BREE 83 - - 83
Total azt 263 6,888 266 2,968 10,385
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under Br EXCPTIRERE SN - WA RS

which a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P E e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+—-A=+—HItFE

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 13. ESRITEBEHFALTHHE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (%&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b) TEEREFALHEME
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year REE - AEENhER=RHAT
included 2 (2010: 3 directors). Details of those emoluments DRl B EH (ZE—FF : 3%)
have been disclosed above. Details of the remuneration of BFE o AP L3RR - RER
the remaining highest paid individuals during the year are BT EREI A THMESFEENT

set out below:

2011 2010
g% -T2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Salaries and allowances e KRR 4,102 3,517
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {REFETRIHE X 214 68
4,316 3,585
The number of highest paid individuals whose remuneration BB Ny EEN RS ALTH
fell within the following band is as follows: BaAR
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%8 722,000,000/ 7T - 2
3 2
No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the FRN - AEEWEAEIESIE
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement mEATENME - IEREE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for DNER Sk hn BA AR &R [E ) B2 ED Sk B BB A
loss of office during the year. g -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HItFE

14.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
were each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages subject
to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of HK$1,000 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these
subsidiaries with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet
the required contributions under the scheme.

The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the United States
of America (the “U.S.A.”) and Germany make monthly contribution
to the social security fund managed by respective relevant
authorities, which undertake the retirement obligations of the
Group’s employees in the U.S.A. and Germany. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond the
monthly contributions. The contributions payable are charged as
an expense to the consolidated income statement as and when
incurred.
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15.

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Db e ER

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=1t—HIFE

DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FBT T
Proposed final e N1 (@) 12,352 7,411
Interim AR (b) 8,234 33,800
20,586 41,211
Notes: Hiat -
(@) A final dividend of HK$0.03 (2010: HK$0.018) per ordinary share of the (@) BHE-_T——F+=-A=1+—HLFE &
Company was proposed for the year ended 31 December 2011. RS AR AR B F AR A A 5] AR 0.0374 7T
(ZZ—ZF : 001887T) °
(b) The interim dividend for 2011 of HK$0.02 per ordinary share of the Company (o) RZZ——F  ERAQREBREIR KX
(2010: HK$82.44 per ordinary share of Telefield Holdings Limited), totaling IR ERR S B AR0.02B T (Z 2 —F4F ¢
HK$8,234,000 (2010: HK$33,800,000) was declared and paid in 2011, Telefield Holdings Limited % % & i % 82.44
B RZB——FRERREMA
8,234,000/ 7T, (=2 — 4 : 33,800,000/
JT) °
EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BRER
2011 2010
—E——F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Earnings Pl
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, BARETEZREREFZ
used in the basic earnings per share calculation — ARAGHA A EET 57,051 69,921
Number of shares % 1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RRFTEERERERT 2
used in basic earnings per share calculation DA 15 3 i A A X 403,050,241 300,000,000

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the
10,000 shares issued due to the Group Reorganisation during the
year ended 31 December 2010 and 299,990,000 shares issued
pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue have been regarded as if these
shares were in issue since 1 January 2010. Further details of the
Group Reorganisation are set out in the paragraph headed “Group
reorganisation” in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company
dated 14 January 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two
years.

ErTHzEzE—_T——Fr_ZT—ZTF+=-A
S+ —HLEFEEETHMETSE S
fRAR S - BT RRBES—ZTF+=
A=+—HUEFERSBEEAMEITH
10,0002 A% 17 AR $& & A b 31T M 21T HY
299,990,000/% f% 15 + MHUNZFER DR =
T—EF—A—HREEKEET - BHREE
FHE—TFBERL2HEN AT BE
BT ——F—ATHBZBRER ([
MRER]) Mg~ [EEEHR] —E -

RZMEREA - AR BREEAEES
BEER - W EESREERN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZE—F+-A=+—HIFE
NN
17. FIXED ASSETS 17. BEEEE
Group rEE
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Land and Leasehold moulds and Motor
buildings improvements and tools equipment vehicles Total
tREF HEHSIE HARTA ERRRE "E @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET THET FTHET FTHET FTHET FTHET
Cost or valuation RAREE
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZE—ZTFE—H—H 9,900 5,567 94,356 7,435 1,410 118,668
Additions BE = 2,733 11,872 1,425 196 16,226
Elimination of accumulated depreciation ~ Z5H#7 &1 i (396) - - - - (396)
Surplus on revaluation E Ry 2,496 - - - - 2,496
Disposals HE = - (2,507) - (100) (2,607)
Exchange differences ERERE - 199 1,913 81 25 2,218
At 31 December 2010 and R-ZE—ZTE+-_A=+-HK
1 January 2011 —Z——%—f—H 12,000 8,499 105,634 8,941 1,531 136,605
Additions BE = 846 17,037 1,711 26 19,620
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WEE—MI B AR (FizE36) - - - 680 - 680
Elimination of accumulated depreciation 2547 & 8 (480) - - - - (480)
Surplus on revaluation ShAH% 5,980 - - - - 5,980
Disposals HE = = (338) - - (338)
Exchange differences ERZEE - 235 2,185 99 26 2,545
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—&+-A=1+—H 17,500 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 164,612
Accumulated depreciation REiE
At 1 January 2010 R-_Z—ZF—H—H = 2,605 52,182 5,354 814 60,955
Charge for the year FEHE 396 1,132 10,483 783 326 13,120
Elimination on revaluation EhEH (396) - - - - (396)
Written back on disposals HE R - - (1,728) - (25) (1,759)
Exchange differences BN E - 71 1,181 90 13 1,355
At 31 December 2010 and R-E—ZTE+_A=+-HK
1 January 2011 —T——%—H—H - 3,808 62,118 6,227 1,128 73,281
Charge for the year FENE 480 1,564 11,571 1,079 125 14,819
Elimination on revaluation EihHEH (480) - - - - (480)
Written back on disposals HERE = = (338) - - (338)
Exchange differences ERZEE - 102 1,329 81 15 1,527
At 31 December 2011 R—E—&+-A=1+—H = 5,474 74,680 7,387 1,268 88,809
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——&+=-A=1+—H 17,500 4,106 49,838 4,044 B8] 75,803
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—H 12,000 4,691 43,516 2,714 403 63,324
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Db e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+—-A=+—HItFE

FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 17. BEEEE)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as FEENKASAESI AT :
follows:
Plant,
machinery,
Land and Leasehold moulds and Furniture and Motor
buildings improvements tools  equipment vehicles Total
HE BE- #E
THREF BEIR BEARIE HBHARRB RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THIT AL THT T T
At 31 December 2011 R-TE——4F
+=-—A=+—8
At cost B - 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 147,112
At valuation fh{E 17,500 - - - - 17,500
17,500 9,580 124,518 11,431 1,583 164,612
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+=—A=1+—H
At cost B - 8,499 105,634 8,941 1,531 124,605
At valuation fhE 12,000 - - - - 12,000
12,000 8,499 105,634 8,941 1,531 136,605

The Group’s land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December
2011 and 2010 on the open market value basis by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by
Colliers International (HK) Limited and DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, independent firms of professional valuers respectively.

The carrying amount of land and buildings at 31 December
2011 would have been approximately HK$4,550,000 (2010:
HK$4,884,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

REE L FBFUNES - WAPHHE
KIFE o

B EEGEMITE DBEEYEER (B
B) ERABREERRITERABIKLRE
HUMERII R SR MinE KRR - EEA
EELHREFR T ——FR_T—F
FH+-—A=1+—HKAHAME -

R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—8  tiixig
FIRAE A4 54,550,000 70 (ZZF—F
F : 4,884,000 7T) © KA RETITE
Ko EEEE SR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

18.

GOODWILL 18. HE

Group
rEH
HK$’000
FBT

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary Ui — B AR R
and at 31 December 2011 (note 36) R-EBE——F+=-_A=+—B(#7236) 12,157
Accumulated impairment losses at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—HZFREFE -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2011 RZEBE——F+-A=+—HKEA 12,157

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. Before recognition of
impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated in Distribution Businesses — Others segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and expectations
on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of 3%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s
Distribution Businesses — Others segment is 13.7%.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

19. EFEEE

B R R MY oE

BE-F——Ft-A=T—BLFE

Group REE
License Customer
Trademarks rights  relationship Patents
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d) Total
[ g EFBR B
(Hi#a) (i) (Hite) (Hita) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T AL T THL
Cost KA
At 1 January 2010 W-ZE-Z&—f—H 15,616 21,361 17,200 - 54177
Exchange differences ERES (1,113) - (249) - (1,362)
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-ZF+-A=1—H
1 January 2011 k=2——%-f—H 14,503 21,361 16,951 - 52,815
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WiE—BHB AR (H#36) - - 11,307 17,152 28,459
Additions BE - 16,021 - - 16,021
Exchange differences ERZE (870) - (83) - (453)
At 31 December 2011 WZZ——F+-A=+—H 14,133 37,382 28,175 17,152 96,842
Accumulated amortisation and 2EBER
impairment losses HEER
At 1 January 2010 W-E-Z&—f—H = 3,560 2,001 - 5,561
Amortisation for the year FEHH - 4,598 2,825 - 7,423
Impairment loss EEE 123 = = = 123
Exchange differences EXES = = (7 = (7)
At 31 December 2010 and A\E-ZE+-F=1—H
1 January 2011 k=%——%—-HR—H 123 8,158 4,819 - 13,100
Amortisation for the year FREH - 4,450 3,229 715 8,394
Impairment loss FEEE - - 2,746 - 2,746
Exchange differences ERES ) - (57) - (60)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——F+-A=+—H 120 12,608 10,737 715 24,180
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-A=+-H 14,013 24,774 17,438 16,437 72,662
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-TE+-A=1—H 14,380 13,203 12,132 - 39,715
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The Group’s trademarks protect the design and specification of the Group’s
“TrekStor” trade logo, and were assessed to have indefinite useful lives (note
5(b)).

(b) License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of
certain manufactured business phones in the United States and Canada. The
amortisation period of the license rights is 9.8 years (2010: 4.8 years).

Originally, the Group has the license rights for the period from 1 March
2009 to 31 December 2013. On 8 February 2011, Telefield NA Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, reached an agreement with the
licensor to extend the license period of the License Agreement of the
Distribution Business — TCP for an additional terms of five years from 1
January 2014 up to and including 31 December 2018 and the Group is
allowed to use an additional trademark on similar terms and conditions.
The consideration for the additional license rights period is based on certain
percentage of net sales of Telefield NA Inc. for the calendar year 2014 to
2018 with annual minimum guaranteed amounts increased progressively
throughout the five calendar years.

At initial recognition, the cost of the license rights is based on the fair value
of license fee payable which is approximately HK$16,021,000. The discount
rate used was 18.3%. The license fee payable is subsequently measured
at amortised cost.

(c) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of the customer
relationship is 5 — 6 years (2010: 6 years).

(d) Patents represent certain registered patents and patents under registration
process in relation to design and utility of the portable gaming console. The
amortisation period of patents is 4 years.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
its intangible assets. The review led to the recognition of an
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,746,000 for customer
relationship (2010: HK$123,000 for trademarks) that has been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant
assets has been determined on the basis of their value in use. The
discount rates used in measuring value in use ranging from 16%
to 19% (2010: 18% to 21%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE—ZT——F+_-f=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RHBATNKRE
Company PN
2011 2010
—e——% —T-T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT F&TT
Unlisted investment, at cost IE EMIRE - KA 3,171 3,171

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as

follows:

EHIBARREREER LRS- BE

R=B——F+-A=+—BARAN
A TR T :

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/  Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
FElLRARER
WEARER HMAL/ RIS BRTRAZRE REE/HZEANANL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef [E:
Telefield Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 410,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
(‘BV.L.) of US1 each RERR
RERLHS 410,000 B R EEI T
AR
Able Trend Technology Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 90%  Design of electronic components
i of HK$1 each HABFTH
10,000 BRAEE
1ETHEER
Aiko Products Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Trading of electrical appliances,
IRERERAR & of HK$1 each provision of consultancy
10,0000 B A E and agency services
1BTHERR B85  RUERRRERSE
Alagona Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
AERAHS of US$1 each RERER
1REBREEIXT HEER
Bracciano Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
EBRAHS of US$1 each REER

1REREEIXT &Rk
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HIFE
20. RHEBARNRE (&)

RZF——F+ZA=+—HARAH
FitE A RIS T () -

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as
follows (Continued):

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/  Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElREEER /
WEAREH HEMAL/ R BRTRAZRE RER/HZEAASL FTEEE
Direct Indirect
Ef [
Circuit Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Property investment
0 of HK$1 each EE
10,000 SR E(E
BT RR
Gabrio International Limited B.V.I 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
ERRUHS of US$1 each RERR
REEIETAEER
GAEMS., Inc. USA 13,265 shares at = 51%  Design, development, trading,
XH no par value distribution and sale of
13,265 EE E R 7 mobile electronic gaming
and entertainment systems
T FHERIRE RN RE
% BB DHREE
Macar Holdings Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
ABRAHE of US$1 each REER
1REEIETHERR
Metro Creator Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
AEER AT i of HK$1 each REER
10,000 SR E(E
BT ERR
Modern Channel Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Development of electronic
HBEBAT BE of HK$1 each medical devices
10,000 &K (E REETERRME
BT ERR
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding and trading
REERAT BE of HK$1 each REERRES
5,000,000 5 R EE
BT ERR
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. 1 ordinary share - 100%  Inactive
BBRAR EBRAHS of US$1 each EiE 37
1RERERE
1ETME AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as

follows (Continued):

20.

HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEFE

RE B AR ARE (F])

R=B——F+=A=+—BARAN
B A AR () -

Percentage of
ownership interest/

Place of incorporation/  Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElRERER
WEARER HMERYL /R BRTRAZRE RER/HZRAFAL TTEE
Direct Indirect
Ef 8
Telefield Limited Hong Kong 20,000,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding, Electronic
HEERAF Hi of HK$1 each and Manufacturing Services for
5,000,000 non-voting telecommunications, security,
deferred shares car electronics, home
of HK$1 each appliances, other consumer
20,000,000 BHREETETT and industrial electronic
V@M% %5,000,0008% products
GRREETETH REZR A KRR
BRZEETRN REETEm X2 HiEE
RI¥STE mHETRERSE
Telefield ADSAT Limited Hong Kong 15,000 ordinary shares = 67% Investment holding
&b of HK$1 each RAER
15,000 B REE1ET
HERER
Telefield Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
i of HK$1 each RAER
1REETETHEER
Telefield GAEMS Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
BE of HK$1 each RERR
1REETETH SRR
Telefield Japan Inc. Japan Share capital of - 100%  EMS marketing and
B JPY9,500,000 agency services
f7%9,500,0008 ETRERBTZRRERAERS
Telefield Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong 700,000 ordinary shares = 75%  Trading and EMS
R of HK$1 each agency services
700,000% &R EE1ET A RETRERBRERS
8
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Trading and development

SERSHARLA

I

of HK$1 each
1,000 B R A E
TBTREER

of electronic medical devices
ETEEREE S NFAE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as
follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/  Issued and

20. MK FNREER)
RZF——F+ZA=+—HARAH
FitE A RIS T () -

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElRERER /
WEAREH HEMAL/ RIS BRTRAZRE RER/HZEAASNL TEEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef [
Telefield NA Inc. USA Share capital of - 100%  Trading of business
8 1US$2,000,000 telephone system
22,000,000 T BEEHEZNES
Telefield SAT Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
i of HK$1 each RAZR

1RERAETETHERR

Telefield TrekStor S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 200 registered shares
ERE of EUR125 each
200 B E{E 12580
Rl
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong 15,600,000 ordinary
RERFERAA i shares of HK$1 each
15,600,000/ SR EE
TBTHEBR
Telefied Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares
Bh of HK$1 each
10,000k EREEIET
HEBR
TK-Trade S.R.L. Italy Share capital of EUR15,000
EAR f 15,0008 T
TrekStor GmbH Germany Share capital of EUR25,000
{=E & 7525,000EA 7T
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= 51%  Investment holding and
sub-licensing of trademark

RERRLARERHE

- 100%  Investment holding and trading
REBKRRES

= 100%  Investment holding and trading
of computer accessories

REZREERENES

= 51%  Marketing and agency services

SR RRERE

51%  Assembling, marketing and
distribution of “TrekStor”
branded products such as
portable storage devices
and multimedia products

A% - BHENDH
[TrekStor] MmiEER * MER
FREENSRRER
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as
follows (Continued):

Place of incorporation/  Issued and

20. MK FNREER)
RZF——F+ZA=+—HARAH
FitE A RIS T () -

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
ElbERRES
WEARER HMERYL /R ERTRARRE RER/HZEAAS TEEEK
Direct Indirect
EE 583
TrekStor Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares = 51%  Holding of trademark and
of HK$1 each intellectual property,
100 B RERBIETH licensing of trademark
LRk HEARRAEEE IR
BRrag
Zen ADSAT Industries Private India 1,000,000 equity shares - 67%  Not yet commence business
Limited 0 of Rs.10 each UENEGE S
1,000,000 S K HE
10B eV R R
ERAEE (F) ERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Trading of appliances
Aiko Beauty (Shenzhen) Limited i of HK$1,000,000 BERES
(Note) (Hiit) A% 51,000,000 7T
BEMNMEETERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Huizhou Telefield Limited H of HK$15,000,000 telecommunications and
(Note) (Hiz) FHH 15,000,000 7 other products
EAREMERNEEREE
BNHEETERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield Limited H of US$7,060,000 telecommunications
(Note) (#7i2) FHAT7,060,000% T and other products
EAREMERNBEEREE
ENRERERNBRAF PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture and sale
Guangzhou Telefield Medical i of US$200,000 of medical devices
Devices Limited (Note) (/) A% A200,000% 7T BEXENZERHE
EArERE (LE) BRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Not yet commence business
Telefield Vision (Shanghai) H of US$200,000 iESEGES
Limited (Note) (47##) AR 4200,0005 75

Note:  English names for identification purpose.

All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly-owned foreign
enterprise.

Bret - REXEREEB AR

FT A FE 5 BIRCZ RO B X R3S I B &
i
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. TAHtHESRMEE
Group REE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&TT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost IEEMIRARES « KA 4,340 4,340
Less: Impairment loss ;BB EIE (4,340) (4,340)
At 31 December 2011, the Group has 11.46% (2010: 11.46%) RZE——F+A=+—8 Kx&EEH
equity interest in Ades Technology Limited which is a private limited BEERBARARANT1.46%EE(ZE
company incorporated in Hong Kong. —TF  11.46%) * ZARR—RKREE
MR MFLABR AR o
At 31 December 2011, the Group has 2.10% (2010: 2.10%) equity R-ZE——F+_A=1+—8 ~&E%
interest in Touch Media International Holdings, which is a private & Touch Media International Holdings AJ
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 210%(ZZF—FF : 210%) I&#E - %A
AA—RXRHASHSEMKZHNLAR
= o
22. INVENTORIES 22, ®FE
Group REE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FATT
Raw materials JRAT 63,614 60,743
Work in progress EST 32,418 15,167
Finished goods 2K T 67,291 54,182
Goods in transit EEE SR 46,242 21,770
209,565 151,862
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23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

23. EREZFEREIRAREKREE

Group REE
2011 2010
g% —T-T4
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF FET T4
Trade receivables FEWE SR @) 172,934 154,338
Bill receivables JEWE IR (b) 9,286 =
182,220 154,338
Notes: KtaE
(a) The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During the (a) AEERZEFEENEEANETER - ¥

year, the credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, payment in advance
is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
directors.

The Group’s aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, and
net of allowance, is as follows:

FR - FEEH—BRNFI0OREI20K - BF
EEOER=EERE - iRF —RERNM
TR o RS EUN B ) R YR ] FE MR IR 4 5
BRIRELHE - ERTFHIRBBELLR

AEERER P PORKE SRR GRS
) RO

2011 2010

—E——F —Z—EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

0to 90 days 0ZE90K 166,392 148,023
91 to 180 days 91E180K 3,960 4,057
181 to 365 days 1812365K 1,702 2,198
Over 365 days 365K 880 60
172,934 154,338

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables during the year is set out

below:

RNEREIKE P RRBHRH SRS 10
T :

2011 2010

—e——% —z-T5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1 January Kn—A—H 5,862 2,892
Allowance for the year FERE 2,164 3,174
Reversal for the year FEREE (748) (204)
Bad debt written off HsH AR (3,679) -
Exchange difference FEH =R 36 -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 3,635 5,862
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23. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)

Notes (Continued):
(@) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately HK$33,398,000
(2010: HK$44,400,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

23.

BWE Z R R EREE (&)
REE(E)

Wi+ (&)

(@) (&)

R—ZT——4%+=-_B=+—0 EBKE
5 B% 3% #733,398,000/% 7T (=T — T 4F -
44,400,000 7T) B EAAR MBI ARRE © Z
EREHRYEBURFLAR  BEAHL
EHR LI - XFRWE ZERNERERD

oy

2011 2010

—g——F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Up to 3 months =@AR 28,217 40,884
Over 3 months Z@EANUE 5,181 3,516
33,398 44,400

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in

the following currencies:

REBERYESRFEREETIIEES]
B :

2011 2010

—B——fF —ZE-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

United States dollar E 164,939 148,465

Hong Kong dollar BT 560 36

Renminbi AR - 2,334

Euro BT 7,091 3,052

Others Hh, 344 451

Total #Et 172,934 154,338

(b) The bill receivables is repaid within 3 months after the end of reporting (o) BRERFEANREARET=MEARNE

period. & e
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE—ZT——F+_-f=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEANFRE- - RERHEMERFIE
RECEIVABLES
Group REH
2011 2010
—B——fF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FABT
Prepayments TERRR 5,102 2,161
Deposits R 6,724 3,053
Factoring receivables from bank HARBUAEUGERI TR 24,490 17,984
Purchase deposits BEES 21,719 10,150
Other receivables H b el kI8 3,612 6,982
61,647 40,330
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 25. T4 IR
Group REE
2011 2010
—B——fF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
At fair value BEATE
Currency option — assets ISR & E 116 2,361
Forward contracts — assets/(liabilities) REAN—EBE/(BE) 1,416 (154)
1,532 2,207

The Group utilises the currency option and forward contracts to
mitigate currency exposure of loans to subsidiaries and purchases
denominated in foreign currencies. These instruments enabled the
Group to have short position in Euro (“EUR”) and long position in
United States dollar (“USD”). The contract amounts of the option
and forward contracts are EUR3,000,000 (2010: EURS3,000,000)
and EUR2,500,000 (2010: EUR1,028,444) respectively.

ZNES B A A W B KGR B A KRB DA
e R T B A BB SR R R M R R BB
NEERR - xS TAFAEEBART
KERETHE - ERRAEHER
£ 55 51 53,000,0008 7T (- E—Z4F -
3,000,000E! 7T ) % 2,500,0008( 7t ( = Z —
T4 ¢ 1,028,444E07T) ©
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25. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25. fTEITA(#E)
Group (Continued) REE ()
At 31 December 2011, the fair values of the Group’s currency R-BE—F+-_A=+—H AEEE
option and forward contracts are estimated to be approximately KHERE MR BB A AT EMF DRI A
HK$116,000 (2010: HK$2,361,000) and HK$1,416,000 (2010: 116,000/ 7t ( —Z & —F4F : 2,361,000/8
negative of HK$154,000) respectively. The fair value of the Group’s J0) K 1,416,000 L (=2 —ZF : B#
currency option is estimated by its value at maturity date that is 154,000/7T) - NEMEE BN T ER
closed to the end of reporting period. The fair value of the Group’s B EHRNB BB EERGER - AR
forward contracts are estimated using Black-Scholes Options RIS A TFENRA SR — 7R
Pricing Model and Discounted Cash Flow Method respectively HETEEARRESEITH A (HET  HEE
and are based on the valuation performed by Grant Sherman R B MERMITRENEER QG
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuer. The THIfHE - FTAEZ/RENT ¢
key assumptions used are as follows:
2011 2010
Forward contracts BHERN —E——F —T-TF
Strike exchange rate (EUR/USD) WEER (BT, 3=T) 1.38 1.32
Time to expiration IENE 0.049-0.301 0.049-0.085
yearsfE yearst
USD risk free rate 3 T R i 1) 2 0.10% 0.26%
26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER 26. FEWRRIIE
Group REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Due from Telefield Charitable Fund Limited U EE=ESERARFIE 200 -

The amount due from Telefield Charitable Fund Limited is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 27.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group and Company are
as follows:

B RSk MY EE
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HIEFE
RITRIRESER

rEBERARBNRE RREEEDA
T

Group Company
AEH AT

2011 2010 2011 2010

=E2——F —_T-TF ZB-—-—-F _—_T-ITF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FExT FHTT FET FHIT

Cash on hand FHEES 301 227 - -

Cash at bank RITHE 147,455 58,686 12,985 -
Cash and cash equivalents RéreHEeRnERN
in the consolidated statement RERRESEFEY

of cash flows 147,756 58,913 12,985 -

The bank and cash balances of the Group and Company are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEB RARRBHIA T EEFEHRTT
e

Group Company
TEE PN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—g—-% -“T-TF —B——F -T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT THT FHET
United States dollar =TT 40,931 27,791 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 29,289 18,741 12,985 =
Renminbi N 59,625 7,579 - -
Euro BRIt 15,384 4,798 - -
Others Hih 2,527 4 - -
147,756 58,913 12,985 -

Annual Report %%k 2011 Telefield International (Holdings) Limited BB zRERAT 125



Notes to the Financial Statements
P E ey R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. ENEZERX

The Group’s aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice AL BIEEZHHANENE SRFIRR D

date, is as follows:

T

2011 2010

—E2——F —ET-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THT

0 to 90 days 0&E90K 140,714 111,062
91 to 180 days 912180k 2,182 1,915
181 to 365 days 1812365K 402 771
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,179 1,565
144,477 115,313

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

AKELTIIEEIMERNENE SRR

denominated in the following currencies: HEDT :
2011 2010
—g——% —T-ITF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
United States dollar =3 42,119 34,467
Hong Kong dollar BIT 85,324 66,114
Renminbi ARE 13,342 12,292
Euro BX T 3,673 2,439
Others Hih 19 1
Total 5t 144,477 115,313
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ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. FEREARHMEMSTIE
Group Company
KEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF B —T-TF

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TERT THAT TR TAT

Accrued salaries BRF® 72,550 70,867 - -
Accrued expenses TERA Y 36,990 14,619 937 =
Customer deposits and BEEe MIBIWFKIE
receipts in advance 19,721 7,650 - -
Other payables H {th fE {5 3kIE 18,944 14,541 = -
148,205 107,677 937 -
BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITEE
Group REE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Bank loans RITER 26,774 38,224
Import/export loans EHEOER 25,106 24,389
51,880 62,613
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated AEBEATEEIENEEREE
in the following currencies:
Hong Kong United States
dollar dollar Euro Total
BT EY BT #@ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
At 31 December 2011 —E——F+-fF=+—H
Bank loans iﬁﬂgﬂ 9,667 - 17,107 26,774
Import/export loans EHOE®R 10,538 14,568 - 25,106
20,205 14,568 17,107 51,880
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30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

30. RITEEGE)

Group (Continued) REE ()
Hong Kong  United States
dollar dollar Euro Total
BT ETT BT Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET THET
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-Z25+-A=t+—-H

Bank loans RITEK 20,671 - 17,553 38,224
Import/export loans EHOEX 17,026 7,363 - 24,389
37,697 7,363 17,553 62,613

The average interest rates at the 31 December were as follows:

Rt A=+t—BFHFERMT :

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

Bank loans RITERK 2.7% 2.9%
Import/export loans EHOBEZK 3.2% 2.8%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s bank borrowings
were secured by the followings:

(i) Corporate guarantee of Telefield International (Holdings)

Limited, Telefield Holdings Limited, Telefield Limited and
Telefield Medical Devices Limited;

(if) Government guarantee of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region up to HK$7.2 million; and

(i) Personal guarantee of a director of the Group as at 31
December 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE—ZT——F+-/F=+—HILFE
PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISION 31. ERRARE

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provision are AEEERRABESDONOT ¢
analysed as follows:

2011 2010

—g——-5 —T-T%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

At 1 January R—H—H 13,355 12,968
Provision used EBAEE (11,897) (11,004)
Unused provision reversed B[O R E) AR (725) (695)

Additional provision FHINE A 15,509 12,378
Exchange differences PE N =% (336) (292)

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 15,906 13,355
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or BEETHOHEEME TN MERRRFWEEREE
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when B AREEAERZSDHEEELERS
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied ultimate BHESD - AEEIRH AZIEE QR B
consumers. Such kind of provision for product warranties granted BIRIBEIE MR E/KER:BTKEER

by the Group are recognised based on past experience of level WHIRZEHIBE(G:EA) -

of repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.
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32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 32. BRAVEFABZHNESRERS
PROFIT OR LOSS

In 2009, the Group had acquired two businesses. Part of the
considerations were contingent considerations and had been AREBIARE - EARE%ZE%EEXEHQ
valued at fair value upon completion of respective acquisitions. N EETHE - KARERFBET :

Details of the contingent considerations are as follows:

Distribution Businesses

Ak -E
TCP MPCA Total
ZHEBED

EMER eSS 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—HF—H 25,232 1,939 27,171
Settlement during the year RERBE (4,687) = (4,637)
Change of fair value during the year FE AT EESH) 1,738 1,958 3,696
Exchange differences & N =% = (139) (139)
At 31 December 2010 N-E—ZEF+=-B=+—H 22,333 3,758 26,091
Settlement during the year RERBE (5,864) - (5,864)
Change of fair value during the year FE A EE (234) (875) (1,109)
Exchange differences P&+ =% = (32) (32)
At 31 December 2011 NE=E——SF=H=+—H 16,235 2,851 19,086

At 31 December 2011 R-E—EF+=-"H=+—H
Current liabilities mEaE 9,023 = 9,023
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 7,212 2,851 10,063
16,235 2,851 19,086

At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZTF+-A=+—H
Current liabilities mEAaE 8,321 - 8,321
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 14,012 3,758 17,770
22,333 3,758 26,091
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2011

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The contingent consideration for Distribution Businesses — TCP is
based on certain percentage of net sales of Telefield NA Inc. for
the calendar year 2009 to 2013 with annual minimum guaranteed
amounts increased progressively throughout the five calendar
years.

The contingent consideration for Distribution Businesses — MPCA
based on 20% of accumulated consolidated taxable profit of
TrekStor GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five years after
acquisition or 10% of yearly consolidated taxable profit of TrekStor
GmbH and TrekStor Limited for the five years after acquisition,
whichever is higher. The total contingent consideration for
Distribution Business — MPCA is capped at EUR500,000.

The fair values of both contingent considerations at dates of
acquisition and at the end of each reporting period are based
on valuation results of Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer. The discount rates used
in the valuations of the branded business were as follows:

32.

Db e R

HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEFE

BEATEFABEZENEMEE
(#&)

DIHEE —FBAERIAREDIBRE=Z
THEE_ZFT—=FFFTelefield NA Inc.
HEFHEAE TAOLE - HFEHEE
ReFEN I EEEF AR o

DHEB - SEHEBEDREMEFIA
KA T 4R 5 Uk B8 12 A 4 TrekStor GmbH
X TrekStor Limited 2 5t 4R & F& &R £t i £
#920% =k Y2 B 1& F1 4 TrekStor GmbH &
TrekStor Limited F £ 4R & F& & £ 08 A1) A9
10% (AR =& AE)TE - DHER—%
WEEMMNERREGIAREBEELRA
500,000BX T, ©

MR ES AR ENEE R RS HREH
RE R FEERBY EEGEMTHE
EARRARNMBEERET - mE XA
EFAEITEERNT

2011 2010

—E——F —T—FF

Distribution Businesses — TCP DIHER — BIAEM 5.0% 5.0%
Distribution Businesses — MPCA DIHETS — Z IR E L KRB ISEH 3.2% 2.7%
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE-—T—F+_-_A=+—HItFE
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EEBIE
Group REEH
Accelerated  Valuation of ~ Valuation of  Revaluation
tax intangible contingent  of land and
depreciation assets consideration buildings Others Total
TR
NERBHE EBYEEME SIARERE BTEf Efty i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThL TET T TAT THL
At 1 January 2010 R-2-T£-A-A (2,060) (15,049) 10,178 - 342 (6,589)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss EEERMIIAKS /
for the year (note 11) (BR)(Wit11)
- origination and reversal of — R EEEE KR
temporary differences 37 2,810 (2,970) - 140 17
Charge to equity for the year FEERZHIAER - - - (868) - (868)
Exchange differences ERER - 250 - - - 250
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-Z4+-R=1+—H
1 January 2011 k=E—%-f-H (2,028) (11,989) 7,208 (868) 482 (7,190)
Credit/(charge) to profit or EEBRTAlE
loss for the year (note 11) (BR)(H211)
- origination and reversal of - BRERELREE
temporary differences (267) 4,296 (2,426) - 580 2,183
Charge to equity for the year FEERDIAER - - - (987) - (987)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  WE—FEINEAR (H236) - (9,676) - - - (9,676)
Exchange differences ERER - 68 - - (9) 65
At 31 December 2011 R-2——£+-A=1-A (2,090) (17,301) 4782 (1,655) 1,059 (15,609
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #H#ZE—ZT——F+_-fF=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Group (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

IEFEBE ()

REEE ()

PATS Rplin & BRI R RO IR B R AL B
DT

2011 2010

—E——fF —T—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE = 5,841 7,690
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE (21,446) (14,880)
(15,605) (7,190)

At 31 December 2011, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$18.4 million (2010: HK$25.6 million)
from some of its subsidiaries available for offset against future
profits in these subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$3.1 million (2010: HK$3.1 million) that
will expire before 2015. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

R=FE—F+=ZA=+—H £A5H
BETHEARESEREATIEE
B %) /18,400,000 L (=T —FF -
25,600,000 7T) - Al AR EHIZ M B
RNAIRIEF o HPRARBETERIAR &= 2R
B I EERE AARBATEEENIE
EFRIBAE - AERBRBBIERERR =
T — A F R fE i #) E5 18 493,100,0007% 7T
—ZT—Z 4 : 3,100,000/ 7T) o HAsE
TH B 1R n] PR B AL S o

2 ff

o

m

S NFERARNEREERYTE

\|

>|_
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRA(#E)
Company P N/NE]
2011 2010
—E-—-F —T-TF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
(e 8 AR EL i
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREBE.01A T LA
At 1 January R—H—H 10,000,000,000 100,000 - -
Upon incorporation (note (a)) AR (Ait(a) - - 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital MEEFREE.0O1ATH
of HK$0.01 each (note (c)) EERAE (H1i2(c) = - 9,962,000,000 99,620
At 31 December W+=—A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T EEM
At 1 January w—A—H 10,000 - = -
Upon incorporation (note (a)) AR (A7t (a) - = 1 -
Issue of shares (notes (b)) Win 847 (A2 (b)) - = 99 -
Issue of shares - share swap (note (d)) Bf3%1T — Rip
(Hi(a)) - - 9,900 -
Issue of shares — by way Bk - ERAREE
of public offer (note (e)) (Hiit(e) 100,000,000 1,000 = -
Capitalisation issue (note (f)) BARLEST (H172(0) 299,990,000 3,000 = -
Issue of shares - exercises BIIRG —1TEHERE
of Over-Allotment Option (note (g)) FeRRHE (Mt (g) 11,714,000 117 - -
At 31 December ntZA=t—H 411,714,000 4,117 10,000 -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18

May 2010 and therefore there was no issued share capital as at

1 January 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #ZE—ZT——F+-/F=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 May 2010 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 at par of
HK$0.01 each. Upon incorporation, 1 share was allotted and issued at fully
paid to the initial subscriber on 18 May 2010.

On 18 May 2010, 99 shares with the par value of HK$0.01 were allotted
and issued at nil paid to a shareholder. On 12 August 2010, the shareholder
transferred 100 shares, of which one share is fully paid and 99 shares are
nil paid, to Dragon Fortune.

Pursuant to the written resolution of shareholders of the Company passed on
31 December 2010, the Company’s authorised share capital was increased
from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 31 December 2010, in consideration of the transfer by Dragon Fortune
to the Company of the entire interests in Telefield Holdings Limited, an
additional 9,900 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by the
Company at par, credited as fully paid: as to the shareholders, directors
and senior management; and credited as fully paid the 99 nil paid shares
transferred to Dragon Fortune as referred to in note (b) above.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 100,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.2 per share for a total cash
consideration, before listing expenses, of HK$120 million. Dealings of these
shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 January 2011.

As a result of new shares issued to the public in connection with the
Company’s initial public offering as detailed in (e) above, the directors were
authroised to capitalise HK$2,999,900 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in full
at par 299,990,000 shares for allotment and issue to shareholder(s) whose
name(s) appeared on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on 31 December 2010 to its/their then existing shareholdings
in the Company and so that the shares to be allotted and issued pursuant
to this resolution shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing
issued shares.

Pursuant to the Global Offering and Over-allotment Option referred to in the
Company’s Prospectus dated 14 January 2011, the Company granted an
option to the Sole Bookrunner and Sponsor, exercisable by China Merchants
Securities (HK) Co., Ltd. (“China Merchants”), whereby the Company was
required to allot and issue up to 15,000,000 additional shares to cover any
over-allocation in the global offering. The exercise price per share for the
Over-allotment Option is HK$1.2. On 18 February 2011, the Over-allotment
Option was partially exercised and, as a result, the Company issued
11,714,000 additional shares.

IR (%)

@  ARIR-E-BERATN\AENSH
B - KRR AAIE0,000BT - 5B
38,000,000/% AR EEO0.01 B TH iR A - =
T—TEHA+\BEMARTE  —RHR
RAH B BT T S BBA -

(b) RZZE—ZTFHA+/\H @ OKREREE
0.01 BT AR MR B3 REEAT T — 2R
RHe-RZZ—ZFNA+=B  ZBRERAE
LER100R KD - AR —RAHEKRG
QOR% B ARBARFRARAD ©

© BREARBDBRER =T —ZF+=-A=+—
FABNERRER  ARBFEEREIN
9,962,000,000/% AL E0.01/E T A + 1T
Y2 7€ iR 7K F1.380,0007%8 7T 3 2 100,000,000/
T

(d) —T-TF+ZA=1+—H  EE€RAQH
## ETelefield Holdings Limited 2 2B#E25 » £
BARRRIEAERNRE EFREHRERE
A BB E R E1TREIN9,900 4% A BRFI ESK 2
&5 + 3 422 = ST (o) Bt 1) BE 42 83 35 00 %
KRB ARRINER IR ©

©) RARANERR2HEBEEMmS
100,000,000 4% % A& 1 {8 0.01 75 7T 89 iR 17 1%
BR12BTHERET  ReRNEBERECR
= ET RIS ) A120,000,000/8 7T © 1t 8%
PR E——F—A-t++tBERERIAE

=

=5

( BRI EX (@R AR R B RAREERA
FALEITHED - BEEFHARFRN
i 18 R HEBR R 402,999,900 T T E A -
YWHERAEHEAR_E—FF+-A=+—
B & 3 R A TR B 2 51 AR A BB R A T RO B
RIZRE SRR AR B OFF AR I B 3 K 3%
17 #9299,990,0008% At » [l Py fic 3% % 3%
TS T B EE R B B TR M AR

FhEas o

() BEARBR T ——F— A +W0HE %
BRERNA 2 RS RBERRE -
ARFABREEEEARREA—BE
BH(BEB)BRAR((BEESR)ELE
BEAE - R - ARRBFINCERBETRS
15,000,000/% A% 1% + bATH @ 2 EREEE M B
HHE o FBREECKRESRATEB R .2ET
R=F——F A+ /7B ' BoBEERE
BT - BULAR A RIE F1711,714,0008%
EBIMNRAD ©
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34.

BE_T——F+_A=+—HLFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts (i.e. bank borrowings)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium,

non-controlling interests, retained profits and other reserves).

The Group’s strategy was to maintain debt-to adjusted capital ratio
at the lowest as possible, in order to secure access to finance at
a reasonable cost. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the 31
December 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

34.

MR (%)

AEEEREAN B BREEAEEDS
BISEEEN - LBBE (T R
% BRRERSARR - AEERES
WS A -

AEEZRRLPIETEASHE - ARE
A B R E S B EERE R
HERENGEBAIEHAR - BTHITH

ABENER - AEEAARKERA
BATHAL - Bk - EEHE - BEOIR
BEBARHEEENRE -

AEEREEFREABREALFERE
AR o (BT BT B E AL R AMEF RRRR
IEHBER - BI5FRSEHAEE
RITEE)RBEERREEEY - LHAE
BABEARENAERED (FIIRA -
Binai(E - JFiEfiEss - BERam R EA
&) -

ARBOFERE R EHEETREER
BALE - DMERABRATUSRE - 5
—E——FR-F-BFT-A=T-A
EHRUEAR AL FWT

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

2011 2010
—g——% —T-%F
N/A 21%

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 were
in excess of the bank borrowings, as a result, no debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio was presented.

The banker of the Group which provide the bank borrowings (note
30) has capital requirement to maintain consolidated tangible net
worth of Telefield Limited at or above HK$20 million for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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35. RESERVES
(@) Group

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILFE

35. f#fE
(a) #F&KH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEBRESHEREEHREGESD
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of HRFIRRGEAESEHRANZR
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of 5l o
changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) ARQF
Share
premium Merger Retained
account reserve profits Total
475 E R e Bl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT BT THET TAET
Arising from group reorganisation B &EEEREE - 3,171 = 3,171
Profit for the period from “T-TERATNR

18 May 2010 (date of (FEfpZBE) =

incorporation) to —E-ZF+-H

31 December 2010 =+—BHRER - - 7,898 7,898
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF

+=-B=+—H - 3,171 7,898 11,069
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—A—H = 3,171 7,898 11,069
Profit for the year FEEE A = = 20,661 20,661
Issue of shares BT (A1234(6) R ()

(note 34 (e) and (g)) 132,940 - - 132,940
Capitalisation issue (note 34(f)  EARELT (H1334(1) (3,000) = = (3,000)
Share issue expenses et (14,432) - - (14,432)
2011 interim dividend and —T——FhHkER

2010 final dividend paid BENZZ-ZFRERS = = (15,645) (15,645)
At 31 December 2011 NZE——F

+=A=t—~H 115,508 3,171 12,914 131,593
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BE-F——F A= t—ALFE

35. RESERVES (Continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
Group Reorganisation.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion of any
foreign exchange differences arising from hedges
of the net investment in these foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set up
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings in note 4(e)
to the financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value
of shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  36.

CASH FLOWS
Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 3 November 2011, the Group obtained control of G.A.E.M.S.,
Inc. (‘GAEMS”) by injecting cash of HK$15,500,000 into GAEMS
in return for 51% of its issued share capital. GAEMS was engaged
in design, development, trading, distribution and sale of mobile
electronic gaming and entertainment system during the year.
The amount of acquisition-related costs was approximately

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &

E-T——E+_A=+—HILFE

REREREBRWE

WiE—BEHEAE

R—ZZE——F+—A=8 A&EEB
¥ & 15,500,000 7 7T = G.A.EM.S., Inc.
([GAEMS ) - ERE51%E 1T A -
1S E GAEMSHIFE G - £ - GAEMS
WEET - F% - BEE - DEKEERD
BRI MIRERG - WEAEBNAAS

HK$930,000. EE49/5 930,000/ 7T ©
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GAEMS RUsEE B HY - GAEMSHIE B Al 5 &
acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows: EREENATENT :
HK$'000
FABTT
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE ¢
Fixed assets (note 17) BEEEHFE17) 680
Customer relationship (note 19) HEBERME19) 11,307
Patents (note 19) =R (HtaE19) 17,152
Inventories FE 889
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR TR 4,578
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIA ~ Re REMEWGIE 73
Bank and cash balances RITRIBSER 12,473
Accrued and other payables TEiRE A R EM R FRIE (7,671)
Loan from Telefield GAEMS Limited, GAEMSE ##2 /A 7]
immediate holding company of GAMES Telefield GAEMS Limited#) & 5% (23,250)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 33) RIEFIIR B E(H3233) (9,676)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R (3,212)
3,343
Goodwill (note 18) EE(H£18) 12,157
15,500
Satisfied by: LATRBI 50518 -
Cash Re 15,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: E U EE A m 3R 0 SRR
Cash consideration paid BENBEeRE 15,500
Loan to GAEMS MGAEMSH LB 23,250
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BER S RIS EEY (12,473)
26,277
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36.

37.

38.

BE_T——F+_A=+—HLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of GAEMS is attributable
to the anticipated profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated future operating
synergies from the combination.

GAEMS contributed approximately HK$23,683,000 and
HK$2,555,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2011, total
Group revenue for the year would have been HK$1,317,851,000,
and profit for the year would have been HK$49,753,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
During 2011,
announced new copyright fees for certain products of the

a copyright collecting agency has unilaterally

Group. Management estimated that the relevant alleged claim
is approximately HK$7 million. Base on the latest available
information, the directors are of the opinion that it is not probable
that the Group will be required to settle the relevant alleged claim.
(2010: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

36.

37.

38.

mERENERM T (HE)
IH&ZE%GAEMSEEE’JWEEPKEZF%E
s HEmMTREZTEE D - LAKTE
HART A& OF 5 2R B AR 2R AL 2 177 [ e

RUCEE BB E =R & B K © GAEMS %
Rl A 7K & [F 7 2K 49 23,683,000 7 7T &
2,555,00078 70 A K & Em Al o

MPER =T ——F—A—HEZK ' &
SEFERABENA1,317,851,0007%
T FER AN A 49,753,000 T © fH
EERRES2E S F—ERMHUEER =
T——F—f—HEEKASEER AT
ERMRARSEEE - T TRIERE R
REFEMTEA

RARAE

RZTE—F  —REREREETT
EMAERETEMNRESZ - E12
[& & 51 7 [ /) 2 78 = (8 40 /7,000,000 74

T RESHMAHET  EERALEE

R B )BTRS 8 70 T B HE BB
T-TF @) -

BREE

AEBRREHROEAAENT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT

Plant and machinery TR 55 T i B
Contracted but not provided for EEESIEESET 3,887 2,373
Approved but not contracted for EHOERRETA 15,970 15,000
19,857 17,373
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HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILEFE

LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. FHMEEIE
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable R A HsE 8 & 70 & B B8 5 A9 R 2K
operating leases are payable as follows: SIEBEFIENT
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year —FR 12,667 7,946
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRAF(HEMERRELAN) 22,584 22,908
Over five years REE 10,508 14,203
45,759 45,052

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

for certain of its staff quarter, factories and offices. Leases are

negotiated for a range from one to ten years and rentals are fixed

over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.

In addition to those related party transactions and balances

REMERBEASERETEIES
BERBRAZERNOES SR BE
MERANF—Z2+F - HSNED AE
ENE W BRIAES -

RELTRS
BRI BHREM T RENEETRS

disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the RAEERIN - NEBRFEEEHBEEF G A
following transactions with its related parties during the year: IR
Name of directors having HEEZER 2011 2010
beneficial interests WESHF —B—-F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AL
Rent paid to related companies B EEARES
— Modern Field Limited —Moder Field Limited ~ Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  Bi# % & 210 435
— Perpetual Rich Limited —Perpetual Rich Limited ~ Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve  ER&i# % 4 390 -
— Swintown Investment Limited ~ —EBRA BB A Mr. Ng Kim Yuen RIBREE 252 240
- Grand Access Limited —sh BB AT Mr. Lee Kai Bon TS 264 240
1,116 915
Legal and professional fee paid 2 REEAFLE
to a related company REXER
— Expertsec Limited - SMEWEBMBAR M. Poon Ka Lee Barry ARMEE - 32
Sale of a vehicle to a related MEERREE TS
company i
— Expertsec Limited - SMEWEBMBAR M. Poon Ka Lee Barry BRALE - 68
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Notes to the Financial Statements
S E e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—-ZT——F+-HA=+—HIFE

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012..
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The consolidated results of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2011 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group as at 31 December 2011 are those set out in the
audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each for the
three years ended 31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2007, 2008
and 2009 has been extracted from the prospectus issued on 14 January
2011 in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 January 2011.
Such summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had
been in existence throughout these financial years and is presented on
the basis as set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

HFEI R E

hEBERZERERAR(ARRF ) REHE AR
(AEENBE_ZF——Ft+-_A=1+—HL
FENGAFERAEEAR _T—F+-A

=+ HHGAREE - AERESSPEEX
&K A ©

AEEHE—ZTT L —ZTZN\K_ZTTIF
T+ A=+ HUIEZAFESFNGEAEERR
T  ZFEENRTEENF+ A= +—
HMEEAGEMEERERHEREARAR
BHR=—"ZFE——F—A=-+LHEEB #éx%
FIAERARER EMMA S ——F—A+WMA
FIBER B ER - ZMBUAEERIBITEER
W EMRFE —BEFEMEM SRR 2
REEMRER -

AT RO 2RI MR E BRI B RR AR

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B——F —T-TF —TTHF —TENF —_TTtHF
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FET FHET FET FHET
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 1,309,390 1,145,542 821,898 848,492 564,052
Cost of goods sold SHEM AR (1,040,059)  (892,929) (634,166) (712,162)  (497,797)
Gross profit EF 269,331 252,613 187,732 136,330 66,255
Other income Hapdg A 7,501 13,243 12,371 3,819 5,636
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD $HR AR (79,524) (73,022) (39,851) (17,413) (12,767)
Administrative expenses THER (91,562) (79,086) (52,996) (40,299) (27,565)
Other operating expenses Hih G & B (28,728) (40,858) (22,507) (20,530) (12,752)
Profit from operations R F 77,018 72,890 84,749 61,907 18,807
Finance costs BEKA (8,391) (4,425) (947) (1,844) (1,969)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% AIFTIS Was - = 1,596 = =
Share of loss of an associate DN B EE - - - (17) (297)
Profit before tax BR A0 A 68,627 68,465 85,398 60,046 16,541
Income tax expense FrisfiA s (8,116)  (12,754)  (12,731) (8,792) (2,188)
Profit for the year FERA 60,511 55,711 72,667 51,254 14,353
Attributable to: L& RE
Owners of the Company /NEIEZE N 57,051 69,921 76,216 51,258 14,353
Non-controlling interests FEE R 3,460 (14,210) (3,549) (4) -
60,511 55,711 72,667 51,254 14,353
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ¥7&E > 8ERIEERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 771,530 520,134 471,637 372,891 280,940
TOTAL LIABILITIES aEBE (423,555)  (347,863) (325,767)  (252,492)  (205,453)
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST JEIE R 2 7,948 14,894 811 = =
355,923 187,165 146,681 120,399 75,487
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Information for Investors

REHER

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock code: 1143
Ticker Symbol
Reuters: 1143.HK
Bloomberg: 1143 HK Equity
KEY DATES

27 January 2011
Listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange

30 March 2012
Announcement of 2011 Annual Results

25 May 2012
Annual General Meeting

31 May 2012 to 4 June 2012
(both days inclusive)
Closure of Register of Shareholders

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal:

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 609

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www. telefieldgroup.com.hk
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